

10/08/2020

City of Detroit

Board of Police Commissioners

BOPC Virtual Meeting

October 8, 2020 @ 3:00 p.m.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

1

2

- - -

3

4

5 MS. WHITE: Good afternoon and welcome to the
6 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners meeting.
7 Today's date is Thursday, October 8, 2020. And
8 please note the following reminders for virtual
9 meetings on zoom.us. A message regarding zoom
10 policies: attendees do not need to identify
11 themselves if they would like to make a comment.
12 Attendees can phone in to the meeting and phone
13 numbers will be masked by zoom.

14 If attendees join in by computer without a
15 zoom account, they may be prompted for a name and
16 email. The email is not visible to panelists or
17 attendees. This is a prompt from zoom, not the city
18 of Detroit. Additionally, the email address does
19 not need to be your true email address. It can be
20 none@none.com or anything similar will be fine for
21 logging in.

22 **A reminder about the meeting forum. As a**
23 **reminder, please adhere to the Board's Bylaws and**
24 **zoom's policies of using this forum appropriately.**
25 **Failure to adhere to the policies will result in**

1 dismissal from the meeting. Accessing zoom
2 platforms requires adherence to all policies.

3 Regarding BOPC contact information. To contact
4 the Detroit board of police commissioners, please
5 adhere to the following. For administration, please
6 dial (313) 596-1830, or you may email the board of
7 police commissioners at bopc@DetroitMi.gov. For
8 complaint investigations, please contact the Office
9 of the Chief Investigator, the board's
10 investigative arm, which investigates non-criminal
11 complaints. The 24-hour complaint line is (313)
12 596-2499. The fax number is (313) 596-2482. And
13 please visit the board's website at
14 detroitmi.gov/BOPC.

15 Regarding BOPC information resources, please
16 again, visit the board's website, the city website
17 at detroitmi.gov/BOPC to find the meeting calendar
18 minutes, updates, reports, presentations, draft
19 policy directives, video links, and much more.
20 Please also join the email list for weekly agendas.
21 You may email the board at BOPC@Detroitmi.gov, or
22 you may dial (313) 596-1830 and provide your email
23 address to receive draft agenda, which is
24 distributed each Tuesday to some 360 people. Please
25 also subscribe to GovDelivery where there are over

1 5,200 people who receive BOPC news alerts and draft
2 agendas. You may sign up on the Detroitmi.gov
3 homepage, and please also see the BOPC link and
4 other information that is also available on the
5 board's Facebook page.

6 Regarding public comments instructions. The
7 virtual meeting will use a forum for public
8 comments and you may access that forum on the
9 board's website and you can sign up on Smartsheet
10 without an email address. The board of police
11 commissioners allows one hour from 3:00 to 4:00 PM
12 for the public to request to speak during public
13 comments or oral communications on the agenda. To
14 make a request without Smartsheet, meeting
15 participants may use the "raise hand" icon on the
16 website, or they may press star nine (*9) on the
17 telephone.

18 Regarding important reminders for public
19 comments. Upon joining the meeting, participants
20 will join the meeting muted. Please do not start
21 your video unless invited to do so by the host.
22 Video, images, or unprotected speech deemed
23 inappropriate by the Chair will result in your
24 dismissal from the meeting. Please remember that
25 you may complete the Smartsheet form. You may use

1 the Zoom controls on your computer screen "raise
2 hand," or you may dial star nine (*9) from a mobile
3 device. You may use any one of these options by
4 4:00 PM to be acknowledged for public comments.

5 And finally, regarding public comments, each
6 speaker will have two minutes to speak. The BOPC
7 staff will acknowledge each speaker. We ask that
8 you remain respectful and professional and refrain
9 from violating the Board's Bylaws, zoom's terms of
10 services, and other relevant laws and ordinances,
11 which are posted on all meeting access forums.

12 At this time, please silence your phones and
13 other background sounds to prevent interrupting the
14 meeting. And also just as a reminder to the
15 honorable board, please also note that the board
16 and panelists have the option to self-mute, mute
17 their microphones, and to unmute their microphones
18 at any time during the meeting. And additionally,
19 please also note that when joining the meeting, you
20 join as an attendee and then we move panelists and
21 speakers to the panel gallery. So please allow for
22 a time lag to make that transfer and to send a
23 message to unmute your microphones and to access
24 and operate your videos. So at this time, now,
25 Chairperson Bell.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. White, and
2 good afternoon, board. It's good to see or hear you
3 this afternoon at our weekly board meeting. I just
4 want to say--

5 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Point of information,
6 sir.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

8
9 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Will the secretary be
10 posting the new agenda? And so much has been
11 changed from what went out and I don't have a copy
12 of the new agenda.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes sir. Ms. White, can you
14 post the agenda? I was going to speak to that.

15 MS. WHITE: Yes, we can. If staff can please
16 post the agenda during the meeting, to show during
17 the share screen feature, we can post that. Yes,
18 sir.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Commissioner
20 Davis. We have two excused, absent this afternoon.
21 Commissioner Griffie will not be in attendance and
22 Commissioner Carter will not be in attendance. One
23 issue we have is that when a commissioner comes
24 online for our zoom meeting, there've been
25 discrepancies. So I'm asking the staff to monitor

1 and notify me once they come online. She just
2 explained the process. Sometimes it takes an A and
3 B step. So we don't want to say you're sitting
4 there, but officially we want to try to get that
5 notification. Are you with me on that?

6 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes.

7 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Chair?

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes.

9 COMMISSIONER CARTER: This is Commissioner
10 Carter. I am here.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Oh, okay. Commissioner
12 Carter has joined us. Thank you, Commissioner
13 Carter.

14 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.

15 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Chair?

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes.

17 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I got a note from
18 Commissioner Brown saying he's going to be late.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Thank you. That's why
20 we want to make sure that before we do a roll call
21 explain the process and with reference to the
22 agenda, we're going to try to do a better job. I
23 know we do a hard copy. We put it on the internet,
24 but we're going to try to monitor that in terms of
25 once we lock things down. Unless, it's really an

1 urgency, but two items that are not on the agenda
2 would be the deputy position and closed session.
3 Those two items are not on the agenda for this
4 meeting, perhaps in the future, definitely. So I'm
5 going to call the meeting to order. We have
6 Chaplain Penson among us, Chaplain would you do the
7 invocation, please?

8 COMMANDER CHAPLAIN PENSON: Yes. Can you hear
9 me?

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

11 COMMANDER CHAPLAIN PENSON: Okay. Let me start
12 the video. Alright. If we can just close eyes and
13 bow our heads. As we look to the Hills from whence
14 cometh for our help, for we recognize all of our
15 help comes from above. Now God, we just come before
16 you, thanking you for another opportunity to bless
17 you and to glorify you. Now, God, we ask your
18 blessings on this board of police commissioner
19 meeting God, you continuously have blessed us God
20 because we were established in 1865, over 155 years
21 ago, where you have countless down through the
22 years been blessing us. So now God, we, ask for
23 your continued blessings, we ask your blessings
24 upon this agenda and we also ask your blessings
25 upon the Detroit police personnel and the patrol

1 officers who are out on the street, God. We ask
2 God, that the shields that they wear, that you
3 enlarge them so they'll be protected. We bless you
4 and we glorify you, in the matchless name of our
5 Lord and Savior, Jesus Christ. And we all say,
6 amen.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Amen. Thank you. I want to
8 speak to the Chaplain. I attended a ceremony where
9 we gained 20-something captains for that corps. And
10 we also will have the opportunity, I guess they're
11 in class now, another 20-something on Thursday
12 evening at six o'clock and I've been invited. Well,
13 we have issues of how many people can attend so we
14 will share that, but it's been very limited in any
15 setting. We have had discussions in reference to a
16 commissioner being tested and not tested and how
17 often and all that. So I just want to commend you
18 Chaplain Penson for your
19 attendance and for your prayer.

20 And I want to give credit to Commissioner
21 Shirley Burch. When she first came on board, she
22 addressed why can't the Chaplain come? And we
23 reached out and they've been coming ever since. So
24 Commissioner Burch, thank you. Surely, we stand in
25 need of prayer. I would hope that we take heed to

1 that prayer, that they offer up in terms of for the
2 commissioner, for the DPD, for Chief Craig and for
3 the community and the nation at large so Chaplain,
4 thank you.

5 COMMANDER CHAPLAIN PENSON: Thank you.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: You're welcome.

7 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you, Commissioner
8 Bell.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am. At this time,
10 I'm going to the introduction of the commissioners.
11 Before I introduce the commissioners, one of the
12 major items even brought up with detectives and
13 even people in the Chaplain Corps, people that were
14 attending there are some of us that watch our
15 meeting and our meetings are extremely too long as
16 you should be aware, for we are the only board that
17 meets in the city or in the state, weekly. In the
18 NACOLE community, we are the only board that has
19 this type of schedule. So, I would try my best with
20 your cooperation, we should be able to conduct
21 these meetings within an hour and a half.

22 What we can't take care of, we need to carry
23 over to the next week, as we meet weekly. And also
24 the copied members have raised concerns to sit here
25 for three hours and it's a long-drawn-out process

1 and sometimes we have redundancy in terms of
2 dialogue. So I'm asking the commissioners that when
3 we get to Q&A post one question, we go around the
4 table and if we have time, we'll do the second
5 question, but let's try our best to have these
6 meetings in an hour and a half.

7 And I think it's feasible because looking at
8 the agenda if we make it tight and
9 we have your cooperation then we can do that. By
10 all means, should you have any critical questions
11 or concern, you can post that and sometimes you can
12 do an email in writing and we can get that response
13 to you ASAP or if it's something in the public
14 domain, then we can make sure we get it on the
15 agenda in order to discuss that issue in a public
16 forum. But can I get your cooperation to try to
17 drastically reduce these meetings and not have a
18 three-hour meeting? So that is my task and we've
19 talked about that before.

20 And when you're giving feedback, when you come
21 down to the public comments, so many people drop
22 off because, three hours later, they're trying to
23 hold themselves to -- and most like Commissioner
24 Burch mentioned, other forums they are not long
25 meetings. They are to point and we have a reporting

1 out mechanism. So I'm asking for the department's
2 cooperation in the same manner in keeping that
3 timeframe brief and to the point, and we can move
4 on. Thank you. At this time, I know we should all
5 be concerned about that issue. District One will be
6 joining us later. District Two would be
7 excused/absent. District Three.

8 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Commissioner, good
9 afternoon. This is Commissioner Shirley Burch,
10 District Three. Love where you live.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. District Four,
12 Commissioner Bell, present. District Five? District
13 Six?

14 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Commissioner Lisa
15 Carter. Thank you.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Carter.
17 District Seven?

18 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Commissioner William M.
19 Davis, District Seven.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir. We go at-
21 large, Commissioner Hernandez?

22 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Jesus
23 Hernandez, at-large.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir. Commissioner
25 Jones?

1 COMMISSIONER JONES: Hi, good afternoon.

2 Commissioner Martin Jones, at-large.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Good. The Right Reverend
4 Commissioner Holley?

5 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Present, sir. Thank you.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. The outstanding
7 vice-chair, Annie Holt?

8 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Thank you, Chair Bell. Yes,
9 Annie Holt, at-large.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Ms. White?

11 MS. WHITE: Mr. Chair, you do have a quorum.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Moving right into
13 the approval of the agenda for October 8th.

14 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: So I move --

15 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Point of information, sir.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

17 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Is the agenda going to be
18 posted so we can see what we approve?

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Could you post the agenda,
20 Ms. White?

21 MS. WHITE: Yes. If staff could please
22 activate the shared screen and post the agenda.
23 Thank you so much.

24 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Mr. Chair?

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes. Ma'am.

1 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: I guess I can't understand
2 because we did get the
3 agenda. Is there some reason why Commissioner Davis
4 is asking for it to be posted?

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Davis?

6

7 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I didn't get the new
8 agenda that was just adjusted.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

10 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Chair, I received it
11 as well.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

13 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Oh, come on now. It's in your
14 email. I'm sorry, Chair Bell. We can move on.

15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: No problem. No problem. Do
16 we have the agenda now?

17 MS. WHITE: Yes.

18 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: It's here.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's not missing those two
20 items being deleted?

21 MS. WHITE: I'm sorry, excuse me. Through the
22 Chair, those two items have been deleted, and if
23 staff can scroll up so that the honorable board can
24 see where those two items have been deleted and
25 where the update has occurred.

1 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, this
2 is Commissioner Willie Burton. I was present for
3 the roll call. The board secretary did not start my
4 camera, video, whatever, but I did see District
5 Seven's commissioner smile, and he's wearing a blue
6 shirt.

7 MS. WHITE: Through the Chair, just for
8 clarification as indicated earlier, please allow
9 for a slight delay and a little bit of lag time
10 when being transferred from the attendee's link to
11 the panel gallery. It does take a little bit of
12 time.

13 COMMISSIONER BURTON: It's no excuse. It's
14 unacceptable Madam
15 Secretary.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Excuse me. Excuse me. We
17 convene our meeting at three o'clock and then
18 thereafter, that's the process. We try to get you
19 onboard, but we convene our meeting at three
20 o'clock.

21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Excuse me, I was present
22 for roll call.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I can't --

24 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Point of order.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yeah, Commissioner Holt.

1 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: May we proceed with either
2 approving or rejecting the agenda?

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am. We can do that,
4 thank you. Those in favor...

5 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: We had a second on the
6 agenda.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: With motion copy move and
8 discussion, we make those adjustments according to
9 Commission Davis deleting note two. He helped the
10 agenda before. So those in favor, yes?

11 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Yes.

12 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

13 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes.

14 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes.

15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Those opposed, no?

16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, you have to
17 call for a roll call.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Sir, I'm calling for, I'm
19 calling for your vote now, sir, that's the roll
20 call. How do you vote, sir?

21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: According to the --

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Sir, how do you vote? I'm
23 calling for the roll call. Now, how do you vote?

24 MS. WHITE: Mr. Chair, through the Chair? I
25 would ask, respectfully, if we can do a specific

1 roll call so that I can make sure I hear all of the
2 names and all of the votes of each commissioner.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. We can do that Ms.
4 White. District One? District Two? District Three?

5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: District Four? Yes. District
7 Five?

8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes.

9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: District Six?

10 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Yes.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: District Seven?

12 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: At large. Commissioner
14 Hernandez?

15 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Jones?

17 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley?

19 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Yes.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holt?

21 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Yes.

22 MS. WHITE: The motion passed.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. The next item
24 would be the minutes. First of all, the minutes
25 from September 24, 2020.

1 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: So moved.

2 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Support.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I'm sorry?

4 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Also, October the first
5 is on there too.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We can do both at the same
7 time if there is no issue with it. Thank you.
8 October the first 2020.

9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Point of order. Mr.
10 Chairman, you have to do them separately.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: It's the will of the body,
12 sir. It's on the agenda. September the 24th and
13 October the 1st is modified in motion to that
14 effect.

15 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: I moved that. So moved.
16 Second.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Discussion. Any additional
18 corrections?

19 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, we should
20 do each minute separately.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Sir, any additional
22 corrections? The body's already spoken. Roll call.
23 District One? District Two? District Three?

24 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: District Four? Yes. District
2 Five?

3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: No.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: District Six?

5 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Yes.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: District Seven?

7 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: No.

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: At-large. Commissioner
9 Hernandez?

10 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Jones?

12 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley?

14 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Yeah.

15 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holt?

16 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Yes.

17 MS. WHITE: The motion passed.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: The next item would be the
19 introduction of the staff.

20 MS. WHITE: Yes. Through the Chair, the
21 Department of Innovation and Technology is
22 monitoring and recording the board's meeting today.
23 Our court reporter today is Don Handyside and the
24 following board staff members are in attendance
25 today. Mr. Robert Brown, Ms. Teresa Blossom -

1 Community Relations Coordinator, Ms. Jonya
2 Underwood - Administrative Assistant, Investigator
3 Tiffany Stewart, Lieutenant James Coles,
4 representing Police Recruitment and Police HR
5 division, Interim Chief Investigator Lawrence
6 Akbar, Supervising Investigator Ainsley Cromwell,
7 Supervising Investigator Lisonya Sloan, and Senior
8 Investigator Rosalia Madrigal are in attendance
9 today. And that concludes the staff introductions.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. White. I see
11 Deputy Chief Bryant. Did I see Deputy Chief Bryant?

12 DC BRYANT: Yes. Yes, sir.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes ma'am. Good to see your
14 smiling face. Would you do the honors? If you need
15 any help Ms. White will assist you.

16 DC BRYANT: Yes. Through the chair, as stated
17 I'm deputy chief, Elaine Bryant. I'm sitting in on
18 behalf of Chief James E. Craig. The people that I
19 know are on the call are Director Chris Graveline
20 and Commander Michael McGinnis from professional
21 standards. Commander Nick Giaquinto and Captain
22 Conway Petty from the seventh precinct. Deputy
23 Chief Grant Ha, our legal advisor, and Director
24 Trisha Stein from administrative operations. We
25 also have Lieutenant Mark Young from the

1 Lieutenants and Sergeants Association joining us as
2 well. You already know Lieutenant James Cole, so I
3 don't know if there's anyone else. I can't see.

4 MS. WHITE: Through the chair. I do see
5 Captain Eric Taski and Captain Lena Liddell also on
6 the line as well. Thank you.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you for Ms. White and
8 DC Bryant. Any elected officials or representatives
9 with us?

10 MS. WHITE: No, sir, not at this time. We've
11 just identified, Lieutenant Mark Young President of
12 the Lieutenants and Sergeants Association, and that
13 concludes the specially invited guests.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. The next item
15 would be the chair report. I have a brief report.
16 In September of last year, 2019, we celebrated the
17 45th anniversary of the Board of Police Commission.
18 In conjunction with hosting and celebration also
19 NACO, the National Association for Civilian
20 Oversight board on which I served as 1 of 11 board
21 in Detroit. It was one of the highlights for
22 NACOLE. It was one of the highlights for the Board
23 of Police Commission that was established in 1974,
24 as you are aware.

1 And I know Commissioner Holley is the only
2 sitting Commissioner at this time that's serving,
3 that's served in the past four or five years on
4 this board, when all the Commissioners were
5 appointed by the mayor and he was one of those
6 five. And it's about the same concept that is in
7 place. And it's probably more pressing now than
8 ever in reference to oversight.

9 Sitting on the national board, we have over a
10 hundred national chapters and that has been
11 growing. Well, the membership individual membership
12 has been growing. The associate membership has been
13 growing and those issues are paramount to what
14 happened to Mr. Floyd's death in terms of the
15 issues of which was in Louisville, Kentucky, and
16 it's ongoing. And we've been responding. We could
17 not come together as a national organization, but
18 we had an outstanding virtual meeting.

19 So many of you had attended, staff attended
20 and it was a success, but not in terms of personal
21 interaction, but the agenda was very thorough and
22 you can get an idea of their workshops which are
23 open to the end of the year. There's an article in
24 the free press today about a reporter. I talked to
25 this reporter and he responded that three

1 commissioners reached out to him in reference to
2 the chairmanship and they were going to take
3 certain actions, et cetera, et cetera. That
4 concerns me. I stated initially, no comments, but
5 when I consulted with the experts, they say you
6 should always try to comment and give balance to
7 the article that's being written. The reporter
8 emphasized it, in-house staff emphasized it.

9 So I responded to that and it's a serious
10 matter that we're going have that type of
11 discussion, it's a serious matter. We have
12 consorted with our assistant corporation counsel
13 person. I look at it that when you have to have
14 some merits to what you're trying to do, and it's
15 unfortunate, I think in all these years and
16 Commissioner Holley would probably attest to, to
17 air your inner circle or inner matters publicly,
18 whatever it is, in the public forum is not the
19 proper place for that.

20 I assume that every organization has issues or
21 disagreements, but I was elected as in the past by
22 this board and you know how that process goes. We
23 say leadership every year by charter and we have
24 fulfilled that. My term will expire next year in
25 June, really July the first, another chair would be

1 elected prior to, in June. So, we don't take that
2 lightly in terms of those allegations being made
3 and without merits, without due process. And people
4 talk about Robert's Rules of Order.

5 Well, Robert's Rules of Order say, to remove
6 from office, any elected officer may be removed
7 from office, for the misconduct of elective duty.
8 The bylaws for that officer served for a number of
9 years until a successor's elected then someone may
10 rescind the election, elect a successor for that
11 post for the remainder of the term. The vote
12 requires you would be the same as rescinding. If
13 the bylaws for that officer on a fixed term, day,
14 years until their successor elected, the officer
15 can be removed only as a result of a hearing,
16 disciplinary hearing.

17 So let's do the process. So when we're talking
18 about Robert's Rules of Order, then we should
19 follow that trail. And as Commissioner Holley
20 echoed that we should provide Robert's Rules of
21 Order to all the board members. We complied with
22 that over six, eight weeks ago. The chair has
23 authority in terms of deciding over the meeting,
24 but there's a process to check and balance for the
25 Chair like any other organization that functions.

1 I've been doing Chairmanship for over 50 years
2 or more at different levels. I have taken part, not
3 just as Chair, but being a member from local, U-
4 Detroit, NAACP, and I can go on and on church
5 organizations, but the bottom line it is not
6 Robert's Rules of Order. It's a process of getting
7 along with fellow board members and agree to
8 disagree, but not be so vocal, and that's the point
9 there. One thing about NACOLE, we don't have an
10 issue, but they have training ongoing of that
11 process in terms of how do you agree to disagree
12 and that type of process.

13 We all come from all over the country a whole
14 lot of these people are staff, they're accustomed
15 to managing boards and managing their business. So
16 I just want to share that with you, that there's a
17 responsibility when you can just go out there and
18 make an allegation, and I want to thank
19 Commissioner Jones for taking time out to respond
20 to that. I think I'll get a little balanced in
21 reference to the leadership of this board, but it's
22 an awesome task. Judge Cohen], who served on the
23 federal bench up until recently, and that Wayne
24 State forum that was sponsored, he indicated, I
25 don't know how you manage 11 people. I don't know

1 how you manage 11 people, going from five that was
2 all appointed by the mayor to seven elected.

3 And I know some people feel as though that new
4 members don't have voting rights and that's
5 unbelievable to me. All of us started out as new
6 members. And once you raise your hand and are
7 certified, you've got every right. Just like I've
8 talked to the police officers, once you get sworn
9 in by Chief Craig, you are a sworn police officer
10 from the moment that they certified you in that
11 sense.

12 Your duty starts then, even though you might
13 report on Monday morning, but you are now a sworn
14 officer and that's the thing with commissioners.
15 And I shouldn't have to say that, but it's
16 unbelievable to me that we have that type of
17 dialogue but appointed commissioners have served in
18 a meaningful role and continued role.

19 And just look at the Charter outline. We
20 follow the Charter. We're all here for the good and
21 welfare. I gave all the commissioners an
22 opportunity to speak to their concerns about a
23 month ago, week by week, and two commissioners, one
24 of them declined, Commissioner Brown declined. The
25 other person, I don't know, but they say you spoke

1 to the good and welfare of this organization and I
2 appreciate that.

3 I sent out a communication to you to
4 references on getting elected. Also, I reached out
5 to Commissioner Burton. I just communicated to him.
6 I shared it with the board that I think we must
7 work together and come together and resolve this
8 issue. It's not a formality. It's just a matter if
9 you have cause if you have documentation and we
10 deal with facts, that's the case.

11 They are people who have called for the mayor
12 to resign. There are people who have called for the
13 chief to be fired or resign and I'm an opposition
14 to that, but they've got a right to say that that's
15 in a public arena. But when you have a
16 commissioner, a sitting commissioner attacking
17 another commissioner, making all types of stuff,
18 that's concerning and that should concern this
19 board. And that is my opening statement. I would
20 hope that we come to accord to address that
21 properly. If there's some merit there's a challenge
22 for that process. And we pride ourselves as the
23 oversight board to follow the process.

24 I want to say one more thing. Facial
25 recognition is over with. The council has voted.

1 That is not a matter for this board. The
2 Corporation councils ruled it. We don't have any
3 authority. They have voted. That is past history.
4 The Greenlight program that is something out of
5 contract, it's something that we don't have
6 obligation to. The mayor reminded us just recently
7 that you cannot set policies by yourself.

8 The mayor and the chief weigh in on policies.
9 It's a three-headed monster. That's how the charter
10 outlines it. So, you have to do research and if
11 not, the Corporation council has steered us in the
12 right direction, something we were doing wrong
13 legally and they said that is not proper. So we
14 have to buy, regardless of what is said in the
15 public, the matter of Corporal Jones is over with.
16 He's a Sergeant now. The arbitrator has ruled.

17 We testified, we voted, but the arbitrator's
18 ruled, but the public has a right to say what they
19 want in that two minutes with all due respect. So
20 on that note, we move on to DC Bryant. Thank you.
21 And I'm going to ask you to be brief and to the
22 point. You heard my dialogue. Thank you.

23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, I'm not
24 going to allow you to change the narrative. We
25 called for your resignation because you are unfit

1 and you are disingenuous as Chair of this body. And
2 yes, we do have--

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burton, I'm
4 going to warn you one time. You're out of order.
5 Commissioner Burton, you are out of order.

6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Point of order, Mr.
7 Chairman. You just went and gave a long speech and
8 you are disingenuous and you're not going to change
9 the narrative we call for your resignation,
10 Chairman Willie Bell.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I'm warning you a second
12 time, Commissioner Burton. You're out of order and
13 DC. Bryant has the floor.

14 DC BRYANT: Thank you, sir. Through the Chair.
15 As it relates to crime, overall part one crime is
16 down by 12%. To be specific, when it comes to
17 violent crime, we have an increase of 12%.
18 Homicides were up by 21%. Aggravated assaults are
19 up by 22%. Non-fatal shootings are up by 54%.
20 Sexual assaults are down by 29%. Robberies are down
21 by 18% and car jackings are down by 9%. When it
22 comes to property crime, we have a decrease overall
23 of 23%. Our burglaries are down by 34%. Larceny is
24 down by 22% and motor vehicle theft is down by 15%.

1 And your officer update. PO Mark Romney's
2 assigned to traffic enforcement. He was injured on
3 January 23rd, 2020. He was involved in a traffic
4 accident. He was rear-ended by a driver during a
5 traffic stop. He's still off recovering at home.
6 Sergeant Michael Bailey assigned to the seventh
7 precinct; he was injured during a protest. He's
8 recovering at home as well, but he's attending
9 therapy. PO Keith Anthony, assigned to the fourth
10 precinct injured during an arrest of a kidnapping
11 suspect, he's also recovering at home.

12 During the week of September 23rd through
13 October 4th, we recovered 96 handguns, nine long
14 guns, and had 81 CCW arrests. As it relates to our
15 protests, we've had no protest-related arrest for
16 the week. We've had no citations issued for the
17 week in regard to protests. Our protest activity
18 and we've had some small protest groups. We've had
19 a group called Refuse Fascism. They've had about 10
20 to 15 people. They generally, protest around the
21 federal courthouse building.

22 On Wednesday, we also had a group of about 60
23 to 80 people. They were protesting Turkey. They
24 were peaceful protests. They did their march around
25 Jefferson and Woodward. We didn't have any issues

1 and they dispersed. We currently have 12 members
2 that have tested positive for COVID in the
3 department. And we also have 34 members currently
4 quarantined as a result of that.

5 We have a graduation ceremony tomorrow. We
6 have 28 recruits, graduating tomorrow at Campus
7 Martius at 10:00 AM. And yesterday we also had an
8 unveiling of our domestic violence and breast
9 cancer awareness vehicles. These vehicles will be
10 used to raise money for the worthy cause. The money
11 that's raised for domestic violence will go to a
12 shelter in the city of Detroit, YWCA Interim House.
13 The money raised for breast cancer awareness will
14 go to the American Cancer Society. This department
15 has donated a minimum of 5,000 yearly for the past
16 three years to that cause.

17 We're also kicking off our National Faith in
18 Blue Weekend. The events this weekend, that is a
19 collaboration between the chief neighborhood
20 liaison as well as the Detroit Police Chaplain
21 Corps. Tomorrow, October 9th, there's going to be a
22 softball game that will take place at the corner
23 ballpark at 1680 Michigan, third precinct. The
24 event will have police officers and chaplains. They
25 will participate together and the winner will

1 receive a trophy. Now, I don't think there's going
2 to be chaplain versus officers. I think the teams
3 are going to be intermingled, but there will be a
4 winner and they will be presented a trophy for
5 that.

6 Then on Saturday, October 10th, there will be
7 the Peddling for Peace event. That's going to be at
8 11:00 AM and it kicks off at the Detroit Public
9 Safety headquarters. That's for a bike rally. So
10 that's going to happen on Saturday. And then on
11 Sunday, there's going to be riding for peace,
12 that's going to be motorcycles. And they're going
13 to ride out to Belle Isle and that event is also
14 going to kick off at Detroit public safety
15 headquarters at 2:00 PM.

16 As it relates to any issues regarding internal
17 affairs, investigations, I'm going to let Director
18 Graveline speak to that. And also Director Trisha
19 Stein is prepared to talk to you regarding our
20 initiatives for mental health.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Very, very
22 important mental health. Thank you.

23 Mr. Graveline: Through the Chair. This is
24 director Chris Graveline. I believe the BOPC has
25 asked for an update on the investigations regarding

1 protests. Since the protest began, we've opened 32
2 investigations. Currently of those 32, 22 of them
3 remain open at this time. Two, have found sustained
4 misconduct on behalf of our officers. One found
5 criminal misconduct and that was submitted to the
6 Wayne County prosecutor's office. And that officer
7 has been charged with three felony counts. Two
8 resulted in the exoneration of our officers from
9 the claims. One has resulted in a "not sustained".
10 Two were found to be unfounded. And then two were
11 administratively closed after investigation. That's
12 the status of the investigations into the protest
13 to date.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Commissioner
15 Graveline.

16 MS. STEIN: Good afternoon, honorable board,
17 and through the Chair, I'm
18 Trisha Stein, the director of administrative
19 operations. And I would like to share some
20 information about our mental health initiatives, as
21 DC Bryant said. Thank you. Specifically, I want to
22 talk about our partnership with DWIHN that is the
23 Detroit Wayne Integrated Health Network.

24 Through this partnership, annually we train
25 approximately 250 to 30 officers in mental health,

1 first aid, and suicide prevention. That is done
2 through the Academy and then also through our in-
3 service training of our officers. A subset of those
4 individuals that have been trained, then get CIT
5 training and that is Crisis Intervention Team
6 training. This is a national best practice of
7 having 20% of your response officers trained. Our
8 goal is to, by the end of next year, 2021 have 20%
9 of our response officers across all precincts
10 trained.

11 We're starting with the third and the ninth
12 precinct based on the needs with mental health
13 calls for service and we have been doing this for
14 about a year now. Unfortunately, we had to pause
15 that at the beginning of the year, but we're back
16 on track. So we have over 30 officers trained in
17 CIT training again, focused on the third and the
18 ninth precinct. Additionally, we have nine trainers
19 in the department that have gone through the CIT
20 trainer the trainer program. On Monday, we'll have
21 an additional 10 officers trained and in December
22 we will have an additional 10.

23 So as I said, we're on track now to be able to
24 train the best practice at the national standard of
25 20% of our officers across all precincts in CIT.

1 And if I could just spend another minute to talk
2 about the co-response initiatives that putting this
3 training into practice. Well, the first initiative
4 is CIT - crisis intervention team and this is an
5 initiative where we have a trained officer in CIT
6 paired with a mental health behavioral specialist.
7 And we've been doing a proof of concept in the
8 third precinct, primarily focused on downtown
9 services. And we will do a soft launch before the
10 end
11 the end of the year in the ninth precinct. And
12 these corresponding units are responsible for
13 patrolling hotspots for there are known narcotics
14 use, homeless activity. These are really the
15 criminogenic risk factors that we're trying to wrap
16 our arms around. They're also providing outreach
17 services to individuals who need to be linked to
18 housing and mental health services and health care.
19 And then they also answer runs with mental health
20 on nexus. So we're doing a proof of concept in
21 these two precincts. We'll continue to roll them
22 out.

23 I'm glad to see my colleagues from the seventh
24 precinct are presenting next. Probably they'll be
25 the next one. And the fourth precinct will be the

1 next one that we will roll out to so more to come
2 on that. If I'm invited back to share with you,
3 I'll give you an update on our progress.
4 Additionally, before the end of the year, we're
5 also going to have an integrated 911 response where
6 there's an embedded mental health specialist at our
7 911 communication center who will be able to handle
8 calls where there's a mental health nexus, and also
9 take calls from frequent callers.

10 We've got some callers that have a propensity
11 of calling on a very regular basis. So a behavioral
12 health specialist being embedded in our 911 center
13 will be able to not only assist our communications
14 officers and give them the tools because they've
15 already started to train but they'll also be able
16 to handle the calls themselves. So we're really
17 excited about that. And then finally, the third
18 initiative is where our neighborhood police
19 officers will assist with homeless outreach and
20 work with our partners in the city at HRD, Housing
21 Revitalization, and also with DWIHN. So those are a
22 few of our initiatives in training regarding our
23 mental health.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. Stein. I
25 appreciate that Director Stein. I appreciate that.

1 I would hope that in the process Ms. White, could
2 you capture that or highlight that? All these
3 activities that were mentioned that perhaps we can
4 attend and I assume there is going to be an open
5 forum for the public and we meet the criteria for
6 COVID, we would love, individually, Commissioner to
7 take advantage of all activities and all the other
8 concerns that you listed, reporting out. I think
9 that is good news in terms of where the departments
10 are moving in. I know Commissioner Burch is very
11 supportive of that type of initiative, so that
12 would be welcomed to share that information in more
13 detail. I know we didn't take copious notes on it,
14 but I appreciate you.

15

16 MS. WHITE: Yes, sir. We can make sure it gets
17 to the honorable board. Yes, sir.

18 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair?

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes ma'am?

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair, I want to thank
21 you for including saying that that was a real issue
22 in district three, precinct 11. And so I wanted to
23 ask you, I don't know your name. What did you say
24 your name is, ma'am?

1 MS. STEIN: Yes, ma'am. It's Director Trisha
2 Stein, Commissioner.

3 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Stein. Okay, Director
4 Stein. I want you to say that are you saying what
5 you just made in your presentation officers are now
6 being trained in mental health? Because that was a
7 hot area besides speeding in number 11. So I'm
8 surprised that we were not a part of that in the
9 very beginning like you just said about precinct
10 nine, that we had an ongoing mental health issue,
11 and we brought up suggestions. I'm just wondering,
12 how are we communicating that you would have been
13 aware of that and include Commander Scrappy and the
14 social worker that we deal with at number 11?

15 That's the one thing I just wanted to ask you
16 because it's almost like we are repeating, but we
17 don't need to put more on our officers. This is the
18 way I feel, that I think there should be social
19 workers that go to these places where mental health
20 is a problem. That should be separate and if the
21 police are needed, that's fine but I think that's
22 in the role and the professional of a mental health
23 person. You can go for training maybe for a week or
24 two months, but you will not be all the way ready

1 to know how to deal with these people. Do you see
2 what I'm saying?

3 MS. STEIN: Through the Chair?

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am.

5 MS. STEIN: Yeah, through the Chair.

6 Absolutely, Commissioner Burch. I couldn't agree
7 more which is why we are doing the call-response
8 model where our officers are trained, which is I
9 think it's important that they have the tools, but
10 they are co-responding in the same vehicle with a
11 behavioral health specialist. So you're absolutely
12 right. They have different skillsets and they are
13 being paired to complement each other and to assist
14 one another. And then secondly, in our 911 center,
15 a behavioral specialist will be embedded to handle
16 the calls and not only assist our communications
17 operator, but to take on the calls themselves
18 directly.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Director Stein.

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay, I'll accept. Thank
21 you. I wanted to ask a question Chair Bell to DC
22 Bryant, can I do that?

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes. Ma'am. I would hope
24 that we give everybody the opportunity for
25 questions.

1 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I know, I know. I'm going
2 to be fast. I'm not going to overtake the time,
3 sir. I wouldn't do that. I just wanted to say to DC
4 Bryant, thank you for your service in precinct
5 three and number 11, but I also wanted to do under
6 the announcements that you've made, the 11th
7 precinct will be doing a prayer vigil, tomorrow as
8 a matter of fact, from 03:45, but it's going to be
9 with local ministers and pastors. So I wanted
10 everybody to know that at 3:45, you don't have to
11 be on the Zoom call, but you could be praying for
12 DPD and our fire department that I included. So
13 just wanted to thank you, DC Bryant.

14 DC BRYANT: Yes, ma'am. Through the chair.
15 Thank you for that. And also, I did fail to mention
16 that there will be different activities across the
17 precincts in regard to this initiative. So I didn't
18 want to leave the precincts out. Every precinct is
19 doing something.

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yeah, because you know I'm
21 thinking so, I got you.

22 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Mr. Chairman --

23 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you, Mr. Bell.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. I want to make
25 sure that we capture the information and send it

1 out and you can always talk to DC Bryant and also
2 communicate with Director Stein in reference to any
3 other details or concerns that you might have, but
4 we want to really move this agenda. Commissioner
5 Holley.

6 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
7 DC Bryant, when did 9/11 happened, if I was young
8 enough I would've joined the army? When I see a
9 police officer, when I see a kid executed, a six-
10 year-old kid executed, it makes me want to --
11 Basically, I can't join the police force because
12 I'm too old, but I just feel like somehow, some
13 kind of way, can you give us where we are with this
14 horrific crime of these people that were killed
15 including this six-year-old kid? And I guess I'm
16 asking; do we take it to another level in terms of
17 getting police officers involved and serving or
18 trying to solve a crime like this?

19

20 DC BRYANT: Through the Chair. Well, that
21 investigation is actually being headed by the
22 Warren Police Department because it occurred in
23 Warren.

24 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Oh, I'm sorry.

1 DC BRYANT: Yeah. But no, I completely
2 understand what you're saying. And of course, any
3 help or any assistance that we can offer because
4 one of the bodies was actually found in the city of
5 Detroit, so we are actually working with them. But
6 unfortunately, it was in Warren that the incident
7 occurred.

8 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Alright, I'm sorry.
9 You're right. I'm falling. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

10 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, Commissioner Holley,
11 that's a good concern. And I know Commissioner
12 Dwyer, a Warren Commissioner has really reached
13 out. He's really upset. He wants the FBI, there are
14 ministers involved. There are rappers involved,
15 offering a reward. And as you know, DPD goes all
16 out in terms of any homicide of this nature, but
17 they do it there daily. But it's on our hearts and
18 hopefully, it just happens too often, and this was
19 an execution, which is not the first time, what we
20 were dealing with. So we're going to move on. for
21 Commissioner Hernandez. I'm just going to do a roll
22 call. Commissioner Hernandez, do you have any
23 concerns?

24 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: No, just a brief
25 comment of appreciation for both DC Bryant and

1 Director Stein. She and I connected briefly on some
2 of the work that they're doing and I'm super
3 appreciative. I know the community will be as well.
4 So credit to both of you and your staff.

5 DC BRYANT: Thank you, sir.

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, sir.

7 MS. STEIN: Thank you.

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Jones?

9 COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes, absolutely. One of
10 the things I want to definitely do is thank the
11 fine men and women of our Detroit Police
12 Department. I did reach out upon the news about
13 that particular case about the young man being
14 executed because I am in communication with some
15 people that really want to get out and be of help
16 and be of service and see what they can do to help
17 the investigation. It was my understanding that the
18 investigation was largely being headed up by the
19 Warren Police Department because it did take place
20 in the city of Warren although one body was found
21 within the limits of the city. So, I just want to
22 thank the police department again, and I'm looking
23 forward to working with them. If there's anything
24 that I or other members that are in the community,
25 Activism of Life, if we can be of any kind of

1 service, we've got people that's definitely willing
2 to put their hat into the arena until this case is
3 solved.

4 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Any other
5 commissioners that haven't had a chance to speak?

6 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Yes. Through the Chair. This
7 is Commissioner Holt. The mental initiative that
8 Director Stein just discussed, was that not
9 introduced by Chief Craig about three meetings ago?
10 Is that the same mental health initiative?

11 MS. STEIN: Through the Chair. Yes, ma'am. This
12 is the initiative that the chief had mentioned, and
13 this partnership is part of an executive committee
14 that the chief sits on with the Mayor and Willie
15 Brooks, the CEO of DWIHN. Yes, ma'am, it's the same
16 one.

17 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: Okay. Through the chair. I've
18 just texted Ms. White because I thought I was going
19 to be gone and request if I could be looped in that
20 discussion and if there's a role I can play and
21 help him with that initiative, I'd appreciate it.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Any other
23 commissioner?

24 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Davis?

1 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Director Stein, I look
2 forward to the expansion of that, especially on the
3 Westside to, my precinct. I have the sixth, the
4 second, and the 10th.

5 MS. STEIN: Through the chair. Yes, sir. I
6 should have never named numbers, but yes,
7 absolutely, sir. In all seriousness, yes, sir. I
8 will come back. Three and nine, as I said are
9 already in process and I will come back with data
10 and we will talk before we launch to the next
11 precincts.

12 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Right, because I would
13 hate to think that you're just giving the Eastside
14 all the attention and forgetting about the
15 Westside.

16 MS. STEIN: I would never do as I said to
17 myself, sir. Through the chair, respectfully.

18 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: DC, can you give us an
19 update? I think we should get regular updates on
20 the speeding and donuts and ripping and all that
21 sort of stuff that's going on with these cars
22 because that's what I'm constantly getting
23 complaints about. Racing over here on the Westside.
24 I don't know about the Eastside, but over here on
25 the Westside, we're getting lots of complaints.

1 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, sir. Yes, sir.

2 DC BRYANT: Through the chair. That is a
3 constant issue. We do have our details still in
4 place. We will be out this weekend in full force
5 trying to enforce that. Unfortunately, we had a lot
6 of resources being pulled in a lot of different
7 directions, but now we're able to actually
8 concentrate a lot of our resources back onto that
9 effort so you should see some changes.

10 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. Thank you.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. DC, I'm going to
12 ask that we, with Ms. White, do some core things
13 that we need to hear from you all the time. And I
14 think that would be Ms. White working that up and
15 you can perhaps verbalize, but also in writing a
16 narrative, whatever. So we just want them to try to
17 cut down on the dialogue and just try to move on.
18 But your report is very crucial, I don't want to
19 string line anything that you want to say on behalf
20 of the chief and Director Stein. We definitely want
21 to give you allotted time to make sure that you
22 convey and you don't feel rushed or any other
23 concerns because they're the supers of what we try
24 to do is have oversight and be informed. Thank you.
25 DC BRYANT: Thank you, sir.

1 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair, respectfully to
2 what you just said, that I've been commented and
3 told by the police department, that the citizens
4 really helped the police department by sharing
5 what's going on in their neighborhood because they
6 can't be everywhere. I wanted to make one
7 suggestion to you, sir, that we should be able to
8 speak as commissioners about what's going on in our
9 particular area. Because I can share with you the
10 investigation of that incident in Warren, the
11 Belmont Shopping Center owner is assisting, but no,
12 I'm just saying that we've got to work together.
13 And these kids on the motorbikes, why not make a
14 program for them to go to Belle Isle, DC Bryant and
15 perhaps show them a way to use the bike, not on
16 public streets. That's just a suggestion, DC
17 Bryant.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner, but I just
19 want to say to all the commissioners, you have a
20 commander at each precinct. I would hope that you
21 interface and interact with them in reference to a
22 whole lot of these concerns because DC Bryant is
23 citywide, but you have a commander and a captain at
24 each precinct. So don't wait until we meet, make
25 sure they are informed and they're responding to

1 you. That is a perfect example of how I work in
2 number five and I do number nine. I engage the
3 commander. They have meetings also. They have
4 forums. They have a Zoom meeting. And as you know,
5 Commissioner Burch, let's try to make sure if
6 there's something that's dear to our hearts, but we
7 don't want to really be bogged down. I'm going to
8 move on. Any unfinished business? If not, new
9 business?

10 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Okay. No, that's okay.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: No. Announcements coming up?

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, I have
13 something for new business.

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

15 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I move that we moved
16 public comments up from two minutes to three
17 minutes. A lot of times the citizens don't always
18 have enough time to express their concerns before
19 this body. And so, there is a bill in the state
20 Senate to give citizens three minutes but this body
21 has the opportunity to do that today if this motion
22 is properly second by any of my fellow colleagues.
23 So I move that --.

24

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Let me say this to you,
2 Commissioner Burton. We have three-hour meetings
3 and by the time we get to the two minutes or
4 whatever people have dropped off, that's the
5 concern. So we would take that under advisement on
6 how can we work that out because our meetings are
7 excessively too long. Basically, the standard
8 format in the city is two minutes but I also think
9 we want to help a format where the system got
10 specific questions that we can respond, or what do
11 you call it can respond.

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Chairman Bell, I did get
13 a second on the
14 motion to move, it's in the comments, to three
15 minutes. I did get a second on that.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Sir, I think that's a
17 protocol, a process and I said we would take it
18 under advisement.

19 COMMISSIONER BURTON: It's been properly
20 supported, Chairman Bell.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I didn't hear a second, sir.

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: There was a second. The
23 second was by Commissioner Bill Davis from District
24 Seven, sir.

1 MS. WHITE: Through the chair, I did not hear
2 a second to the motion.

3 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I second it. Review the
4 tape.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. Then properly moved
6 and second. Discussion. Repeat the motion, Ms.
7 White.

8 MS. WHITE: The motion was to increase the
9 public comments, move it from two minutes to three
10 minutes for each speaker.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Discussion on the motion.

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Let me repeat the motion.

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Go ahead, sir.

14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: The motion is I call to
15 move the public comments up to three minutes.
16 That's the motion. The discussion on the motion is
17 that when citizens come before this body,
18 oftentimes, two minutes is not enough time for them
19 to bring their concerns before the commission. And
20 so we, as a public body, we want to hear from all
21 of our constituents regardless of their concerns.
22 We were duly elected. Some of my colleagues were
23 appointed. And I'm sure that they want to hear from
24 their constituents as well. We are doing our due
25 diligence by wanting to hear from each and every

1 one of them. We want them to know that we are a
2 commission that's put in place to take their
3 concerns seriously.

4 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Through the chair.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir. Commissioner
6 Hernandez.

7 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I'd like to emphasize
8 that the public has various mediums to be able to
9 connect with this board. Public comment, although
10 it is just two minutes in the effort of it
11 basically, they do have the opportunity to connect
12 with us through email, through the complaint
13 system, through a variety of different mediums and
14 so this isn't the only way that they can reach us.
15 And again, two minutes is the standard throughout
16 the city and I'd like to maintain that. If we can
17 get to a vote, please.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Any other commissioners
19 before we go to a vote? I echo that same concern
20 that it is standard two minutes throughout. And you
21 just outlined these other mechanisms. Commissioner
22 Hernandez, roll call.

23 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: No.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Jones.

25 COMMISSIONER JONES: No.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley?
2 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: No.
3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Carter.
4 COMMISSIONER CARTER: No.
5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burch.
6 COMMISSIONER BURCH: No.
7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holt.
8 VICE-CHAIR HOLT: No.
9 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Bell. No.
10 Commissioner Burton.
11 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes.
12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Brown. Ms.
13 White, have we covered all the commissioners?
14 MS. WHITE: Commissioner Davis.
15 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Again.
16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I'm sorry. Davis,
17 commissioner. I'm sorry.
18 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes, I support it.
19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir. Thank you. Ms.
20 White?
21 MS. WHITE: A motion failed.
22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. HR report.
23 LIEUTENANT COLES: Greetings, honorable board.
24 Through the chair.
25 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

1 LIEUTENANT COLES: Yes, sir. This monthly
2 report is provided as a summary of our activities
3 for the month of September 2020. Also, provided are
4 documents that contain more detailed information
5 with respect to staffing, hiring, and manpower by
6 race and sex, specifically for sworn members.

7 For employment, our current department
8 staffing for sworn members. Positions filled; we
9 have 2,586. Positions vacant, 86. For civilians
10 positions filled, 602. Positions vacant, 141. For
11 the sworn recruiting numbers, it should be for the
12 July 1st, the fiscal year to September 30th. The
13 total number of applicants is 1,273. The total
14 number that's in-process is 17. The number hired
15 within that period is 40, lack of interest is 82,
16 total temporarily disqualified, 633, permanently
17 disqualified is 148. The number that we have
18 waiting for MCOs is 353.

19 For our testing for that month of September.
20 For the written exam we had 66 people scheduled, 38
21 people appeared, 34 passed, and four failed. One
22 rescheduled and we had 27 no shows. For our
23 physical agility tests, we had 95 people scheduled,
24 64 appeared, 31 passed, 33 failed. We had three
25 rescheduled and 28 were no shows. The number of

1 Academy graduates we have for the month is 27. The
2 total new hires for September that number should be
3 22. That was my error, I'm sorry. And for sworn
4 it's 22, civilians are 32. The total new hires are
5 54.

6 For the Detroit residency information. The
7 number of residents who we've had for the Detroit
8 sworn is 579. The total of civilians is 338. The
9 total police assistance is 31. Our attrition
10 numbers for September. For sworn, we have 21.
11 Civilians, four, and a total attrition number of
12 25. Our leave of absence for sworn for September
13 2020. FMLA continuous is 32. FMLA intermittent is
14 133. On medical leave is one. Military leave,
15 three. Restricted, 136. Disabled is 55 and sick,
16 16.

17 For sworn personnel suspensions we've had a
18 total of 12. Monthly separations, 21. In our drop
19 program, we have a total of 543 and that's
20 concluded. Sir, I do want to ask, just really,
21 really quickly, Sergeant Gonzales has a recruiting
22 event that we are coming up with for this Saturday.
23 And I'm sorry, we weren't able to get it to DC
24 Bryant in time and if she could be un-muted, I
25 wanted you to just give her an opportunity really,

1 really quickly to just kind of get that information
2 out to the citizens.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: No problem. What we're
4 recording is big as you all know. Thank you.

5 LIEUTENANT COLES: Thank you, sir.

6 SERGEANT GONZALES: Hi, thanks for having me.
7 It's Sergeant Sara Gonzales from recruiting. I
8 would just like you guys to share, I will email
9 Commissioner Brown the flyer that we have for the
10 career fair. It's going to be Saturday. We're
11 hoping for a great turnout. It's going to be a
12 drive-up career fair. So no contact, but we are
13 going to be offering for the first time ever a free
14 conditional offer of employment and I think it's
15 bringing a lot of attention to the criminal justice
16 students. Basically, if they pass everything in our
17 background, all the tasks, everything that needs to
18 be done from point A to point Z, they will be hired
19 with the Detroit Police Department, pending on the
20 direction of the mayor. So this is bringing a lot
21 of attention to like I said, criminal justice
22 students, everyone in the surrounding areas, but it
23 would help if you guys could please spread the
24 word.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: By all means, I'm looking
2 forward to that flyer and maybe somehow commission
3 to do that drive by to just to wave and be
4 acknowledged in that setting. Lt. Coles, anything
5 else?

6 LIEUTENANT COLES: No, sir. I was finished. I
7 welcome any questions from the board.

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Board?

9 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Mr. Chairman.

10 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I have a question.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Holley, then
12 Commissioner Davis.

13 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you so much, Mr.
14 Chairman. I know one time; I think that the
15 chairman told me that the promotion for recruiting
16 was going through the mayor's office. I have not
17 seen much going on now, probably because of the
18 budget. If I can have a copy of the commercial, I
19 could put it on my TV network and it's
20 complimentary. But I'd like to have somebody to
21 help me get a copy of the commercial and let me
22 continue to run it on a day-to-day basis.

23 SERGEANT GONZALES: That sounds great. I could
24 definitely go offline with you and we could get

1 that started. We would love that. All the support
2 we could get.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Commissioner
4 Holley. I think that's on
5 point. Any other commissioner?

6 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Davis again.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Davis, yes, sir.

8 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Question, Lieutenant
9 Coles. Am I looking at this right? Out of the top
10 50 positions for chief, assistant chief, deputy
11 chief, and commander and captain, only five out of
12 the 50 positions live in the city of Detroit?

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: That is correct. That's been
14 the case for quite some time.

15 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: That's horrible.

16 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Well, that's the reality.
17 They have the opportunity to live where they want
18 to live, sir. So we have to respect that process.
19 And, so I just want to say that that issue comes
20 up, as mayor say quite often, but it's a non-issue
21 because we don't control that.

22 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: This is an issue, sir.

23 CHAIRPERSON BELL: I understand. The mayor, we
24 talked about it, he gets that question all the

1 time. Why don't they live in the city of Detroit?

2 But I'm proud to say ---

3 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I'm talking about the
4 command staff.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Command staff too. They have
6 the same right. There's no discrimination there,
7 sir. Okay, we can move on. Lieutenant Coles, I want
8 to thank you and your team for doing an outstanding
9 job. As always, we're looking forward. The
10 graduating class can only have three family members
11 in attendance because of COVID. These are difficult
12 times, so I'm glad that we're having it outside. I
13 and the vice-chair will be able to attend. We have
14 to make sure we make those types of arrangements
15 with the team. All the restricted command officers.
16 They just don't have an open forum anymore because
17 of COVID. Is that correct, Lieutenant Coles?

18 LIEUTENANT COLES: Yeah. Through the chair,
19 yes, sir. That is correct. Definitely.

20 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. Moving on to my
21 favorite precinct, the seventh precinct, because I
22 started my career there. And I think one of my
23 favorite captains, Petty is going to speak on
24 behalf of the command. Seventh precinct.

1 COMMANDER GIAQUINTO: Yes, sir. Good afternoon,
2 honorable board.

3 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Oh, the commander, okay.
4 I'm sorry. With all due respect.

5 COMMANDER GIAQUINTO: No, no, no, no, no.
6 Conway is here with me.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay, and you are one of my
8 favorite people because you command number seven.

9 COMMANDER GIAQUINTO: So because Conway
10 insisted on canceling a vacation date to be here,
11 we're going to go out of order a little bit with
12 the permission of the board --

13 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

14 COMMANDER GIAQUINTO: To allow Conway to
15 introduce the team and share some information with
16 you. So, Conway, it's all yours if you're online.

17 CAPTAIN PETTY: Good afternoon. Through the
18 chair.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

20 CAPTAIN PETTY: Mr. Bell, I'm always telling
21 you, me and you both came from seven. This is the
22 best place. I'm going to introduce my NPO staff
23 behind me. You have Sgt. McDaniels. I don't know if
24 you can see him. You have Officer Davis, Officer
25 Corbett is here, but I think he stepped out of the

1 room. I couldn't get them signed on their phone. So
2 we're just sharing off of this space and practicing
3 social distance.

4 You guys have our handout and usually, we're
5 really, really active as far as things that we do,
6 but because of COVID and this pandemic, we had to
7 cut back on all those items until we can kind of
8 work out a Zoom program or something when it
9 evolves and it's kind of challenging. As anybody
10 with any kids online knows trying to get people to
11 stay in a Zoom atmosphere as a child is hard. So
12 we're trying to see what that's going to look like
13 for the future, for any of these programs, some
14 kind of electronic thing, but the only things that
15 we have coming up are what the deputy chief spoke
16 on.

17 We have this National Faith And Blue Weekend,
18 which we have a few things going on. I'll have
19 Sergeant McDaniel speak on those. And we're also
20 trying to do an outside version of our trump or
21 tree, which is going to be outside so we don't
22 impact the children in the neighborhood. So we've
23 got a go-ahead on that, but it's going to be
24 outside in the parking lot so, instead of going

1 inside, it'll be outside so nobody will be exposed.

2 Sergeant McDaniel, speak on the ---

3 SERGEANT MCDANIEL: Good afternoon board,
4 deputy chief. So at the seventh precinct on
5 Saturday, we're going to do a barbecue grill with
6 our chaplains, and we're going to include the
7 Pinckney Park community as well as Burns, Fisher,
8 and Seneca. So we're going to be doing that from
9 12:00 PM to 3:00 PM. Now on Monday, we're going to
10 be doing our Fallen Angels motorcade. We merged
11 with Pastor Barry on that endeavor. We're going to
12 start that at 11:00 AM to 2:00 PM. It's going to be
13 like just a short walk from the church of Messiah
14 down to Mount Zion. So those are the two events
15 that we're doing. We also merged with Commander
16 Hope as well with the chief neighborhood liaison
17 for Friday with the softball game and we have a
18 team that's inserted in there as well.

19 CAPTAIN PETTY: That's pretty much it. So I'll
20 have Commander Giaquinto going through the prize
21 portion of it.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Captain Petty.

23 COMMANDER GIAQUINTO: Alrighty, once again,
24 good afternoon, honorable board. You have the
25 numbers before you, so for the sake of time, I

1 won't go over all of them but what I will do is
2 share some of the highlights for you. As you all
3 know and have heard over the previous weeks and
4 months that the city of Detroit has seen an
5 increase in non-fatal shootings to the tune of
6 about 55%.

7 The seventh precinct has followed that trend
8 but we are a little bit lower at about 50%. To kind
9 of share the challenges of success. Last year, the
10 seventh precinct had the greatest overall crime
11 reduction in the city so it's hard to compete with
12 those numbers. So I'm going to share the truth
13 behind the numbers and even though we saw
14 tremendous improvement last year, we still continue
15 to show improvement and are working towards our
16 goal to making the seventh precinct the safest
17 community in the precinct.

18 The average number of non-fatal shootings in
19 each precinct is about 81 and we are significantly
20 lower than that with about 43 this year. The
21 average clearance rate in the city for non-fatal
22 shooting cases is 25. We are beating that at 33%.
23 Once again, with the increase in violence, the city
24 has seen about a 21% increase in homicides. Ours is
25 slightly higher than that even but we have seen

1 some of the lowest, violent crime in the city. I
2 think we are significantly lower than any of the
3 other precincts with having about 580 some victims
4 of violent crime in the city and our closest
5 competitors, probably a couple of hundred numbers
6 above that.

7 So, even though we are seeing some increases,
8 we are still in the belief that our precinct is
9 very safe and we care about those that live here
10 and visit and work here. So some of the strategies
11 that we have implemented to see and achieve some of
12 the success that we've had that is through our
13 community outreach with the assistance of our
14 neighborhood police officers who you've had the
15 good fortune of meeting just a few moments ago.
16 We're educating our community on how to protect
17 themselves, their homes, their vehicles, and their
18 places of business.

19 We are implementing and for the sake of time,
20 I won't get into great detail, but we're
21 implementing the Bureau of Justice assistance,
22 Watch Your Car program because property crime seems
23 to be our greatest challenge here in the seventh
24 precinct. So we are also dealing with our
25 offenders. And to go back and I think this board

1 has heard me mentioned this before crime doesn't
2 happen unless the victim, the offender comes
3 together at a particular location. So we attack,
4 our strategy is to deal with each side of that
5 crime triangle, the victims, the offenders, and the
6 locations.

7 As it relates to offenders, we use
8 intelligence. We are data-driven, use cease-fire,
9 and take a proactive approach as it relates to
10 offenders. Once we identify an offender, we have
11 probable cause to believe that that person is
12 responsible for committing a crime we don't wait on
13 the prosecutor's office to make a determination. We
14 don't wait for anything. We send officers out
15 immediately. We have a dedicated team of officers
16 that are specifically tasked with making not in
17 custody and probable cause arrests. And I think
18 that is sending a message to those individuals that
19 are preying upon our community and our public that
20 we take what they're doing seriously and will not
21 tolerate it here in the seventh precinct.

22 We also utilize data to identify areas of
23 concern within the precinct and try to do our best
24 to protect those spaces. Utilizing Greenlight, as
25 hot of a topic that is, I will take a brief moment

1 to share with you. It was my capstone paper, at
2 Michigan State University that was entitled to safe
3 places that were part of the conversation that took
4 place and brought Greenlight here. For those of you
5 that don't know, I have three black sons that I'm
6 raising, and they all are here in the city of
7 Detroit and I would never, ever, ever support a
8 program that was, that was going to bring unfair,
9 unjust and prejudicial light on them or their
10 actions or their movement in the city of Detroit.

11 The program is making our streets safer. There
12 are challenges with the technology, but we have
13 measures in place to protect the liberties of my
14 sons. So we want them there. Violent crime, once
15 again, we have the fewest number of victims at 586.
16 We have the second-lowest violent crime rate per
17 capita. However, we believe our population here at
18 the seventh precinct is significantly under-
19 reported. Homelessness services that used to be
20 provided through the neighborhood service
21 organization, NSO at Mack and third, were all
22 transferred over to team wellness, which is located
23 at Mack and Mount Elliott.

24 All of the responsibilities transferred from
25 the third precinct to the seventh, the resources in

1 the form of personnel did not, but we continue to
2 do the best we can with the bodies that we have and
3 we are paying additional attention to things that
4 are taking place at Mack and Mount Elliott. We
5 currently hold the number two position with the
6 greatest decrease in property crime at 30% which I
7 think you heard Deputy Chief Bryant report out that
8 property crime for the city was down about 21%.
9 Well, we're beating that at 30.

10 Total crime, we have, I think just about
11 everybody beat, but we currently hold the number
12 two position with the greatest decrease in total
13 crime at 21% and that is after last year's great
14 numbers, having the greatest overall reduction in
15 crime in the entire city. Current trends, in the
16 past month we only saw one crime category go up,
17 that is robbery. And we had one incident more than
18 that month and we, I believe have one of the
19 highest clearance rates as it relates to armed
20 robbery and robbery cases.

21 Other trends, once again, we have noticed an
22 increase in criminal activity in the area of team
23 wellness located at Mack and Mount Elliott.
24 Director Stein mentioned it. This is the epicenter
25 for our at-risk community, our mentally ill, and

1 our homeless population. Once we see and realize
2 the increase in personnel, it was our hope to stand
3 up service-related cars that are going to run
4 across all three shifts to service this community.
5 As you know, the challenge is that many of these
6 folks are preyed upon by criminals in the city and
7 it is difficult for us to get in touch with our
8 homeless and mentally ill population that are
9 victimized. And at times, they too are the
10 offenders of crimes, but we face the same challenge
11 in trying to get them into custody after they have
12 been identified as being responsible for the crime.

13 Some of the things that we use and for the
14 sake of time, I won't go over them. I'm sure the
15 board, this honorable board is familiar with the
16 gun stat, but one of the things that I do want to
17 highlight and spend a little bit more time on is
18 the Watch Your Car program. The National Motor
19 Vehicle Theft Prevention Act of 1994 authorizes
20 agencies to develop in cooperation with the States,
21 a national voluntary motor vehicle theft prevention
22 program. The Watch Your Car program is designated
23 as a cooperative initiative amongst States, locals,
24 governments, and the Bureau of Justice.

1 The program provides decals for motor vehicles
2 and owners to voluntarily display on their car, to
3 alert police, that their vehicle which is normally
4 not driven between the hours of 1:00 AM and 5:00 AM
5 is on the street and to encourage that voluntary
6 police encounter. We have been blessed and
7 fortunate to have the Jefferson East Incorporated
8 group to raise funds to start and kick this program
9 off so that we can have the decals available to,
10 starting with the high rise and the multilevel
11 residences that blankets the seventh precinct all
12 up and down Jefferson and Chene.

13 We have partnerships with all of those
14 apartments and condo complexes and they are very
15 excited to see this program kicked off. We have
16 already, and I can share with the board if it's so
17 desired, the decal that is going to be utilized,
18 and the signup sheet for those individuals that are
19 interested in participating in the program. We
20 believe that this will have a significant impact on
21 reducing the overall number of larceny for motor
22 vehicle incidents that we have taking place as well
23 as auto theft.

24 As you know, auto theft and larceny for motor
25 vehicles, there is a time where we are behind the

1 curve. We don't know about it until the victim
2 discovers that their cars are no longer there or
3 their car has been broken into. This initiative
4 will allow us to be proactive in our approach. We
5 will identify and initiate stops when we know the
6 crimes are taking place in the hours of 1:00 AM.
7 5:00 AM when most good citizens are asleep in their
8 beds. We will be able to use that as an opportunity
9 to determine whether or not the owner of the
10 vehicle who'll be on record as well as any other
11 driver that has the authorization to move that
12 vehicle is operating that car and if not, we will
13 take appropriate actions with most likely the
14 offender that we have just apprehended.

15 In other programs, we have an embedded social
16 worker to work with our domestic violence
17 situation. I and a domestic violence advocate, we
18 recently lost ours, but we have someone on the way
19 that is tremendously helpful in dealing with our
20 survivors of domestic violence in the seventh
21 precinct. We have a program that I think is
22 somewhat different than many of the precincts in
23 that we reach out to our survivors on their
24 anniversary. So, as you know, survivors may not
25 initially be willing to cooperate in the

1 prosecution or to even receive services available
2 to them. So we have our people call them on
3 anniversaries 30th day, 60th day, and 90th day
4 anniversary that the crime tool places just to let
5 them know that we care about them and we want what
6 is in their best interests.

7 You heard from, my good partner, Conway, about
8 all the other programs that we have going on. I
9 thank this honorable board for this opportunity to
10 speak to you and I will entertain any questions the
11 board may have.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioners? If not, thank
13 you, sir. I would hope that you share with Ms.
14 White, you mentioned two or three initially,
15 especially one that impacts the people on Jefferson
16 about the car situation. I would hope you'll share
17 that with us. I just wanted to commend you on
18 sharing your personal concern about your three sons
19 being African-American, black. I think that was a
20 personal note. I respect that and hopefully, we
21 appreciate that. And as you know, the number one
22 issue in Detroit is public safety. It's public
23 safety, it is dear to all our hearts, all our
24 commissioners, all our citizens so we can't do
25 enough. And I just want to commend the men's and

1 women patrol that works these streets and they're
2 out there 24/7, you know the shift concerns. So, I
3 can't say enough about men and women who are in
4 uniform on patrol. I appreciate that one. Thank
5 you, sir.

6 COMMANDER GIAQUINTO: Thank you, Chair.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Ms. White?

8 MS. WHITE: Yes, sir. Through the chair.
9 Honorable board, if you could please refer to your
10 agenda for the incoming correspondence for this
11 week. There are four items listed and they include
12 the following, just in a summary. The weekly DPD
13 facial recognition report, the human resources
14 monthly report, which you've just received and it
15 was just presented, the NACOLE event, a flyer, and
16 a thank you letter from Senator Carl Levin,
17 retired, regarding the Detroit Police
18 Commissioner's Past and Present Panel Discussion
19 that took place a couple of weeks ago. And that was
20 a thank you letter to the honorable board and to
21 BOPC staff. Regarding the additional reports that
22 you received in your packet this week, you saw the
23 BOPC annual 2019 report for your review and
24 consideration. Please share any feedback or any
25 edits or additions to that report by Monday,

1 October 19th, for the final implementation and
2 printing of that report.

3 And then also, in your weekly packet this
4 week, you received the OCI Draft Standard Operating
5 Procedures Handbook so please review that document
6 as well. And if you could please have that item or
7 have any recommendations or edits to that SOP,
8 please share those recommendations by Thursday,
9 October 15th. And we also just received the DPD
10 recruiting flyer and the career fair that is to be
11 held this Saturday, October 10th, as discussed
12 earlier from 9:00 AM until 2:00 PM. And so, we will
13 share that information with the honorable board and
14 any additional flyers that we receive. And that
15 concludes the incoming correspondence for this
16 week.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you, Ms. White.
18 Announcement. The next meeting is Thursday, October
19 15th, 2020 at 3:00 PM. The next community meeting
20 following that will be on Thursday, November the
21 12th at 3:00 PM and that's on your schedule forward
22 agenda. Commissioner Burch?

23 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes. I'm sorry, Mr. Bell
24 to interrupt you, but I just texted Ms. White. I
25 would prefer to say that message that I sent her,

1 but the announcement I wanted to make that we're
2 very excited and happy to be blessed by the
3 presence of our Detroit Police Chief, James Craig
4 at our community relations meeting next Tuesday.
5 That's the announcement I wanted to make to let
6 people know. DC Bryant, I'm sure you know.

7 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Is that a zoom meeting or an
8 in-person meeting?

9 COMMISSIONER BURCH: No, sir, that's a zoom
10 meeting.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Okay. If you share that
12 link, then we can share with the rest of the
13 commissioners who might want to be a guest.

14 COMMISSIONER BURCH: All right. I can do that
15 later, but in the meantime, Ms. White, would you
16 please make that important announcement? Thank you.

17 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Is that about the governor,
18 the people that were attempting to kidnap the
19 governor? They made an arrest in that case, is that
20 correct?

21 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes. That's awful.

22 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am. I'm glad they
23 made arrests. We don't need that type of activity,
24 but it's due diligence. I don't know if the FBI,

1 the state police, but they addressed the issue.

2 Thank you.

3 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, we must pray.

4 Continue to pray.

5 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, ma'am. Oral comments
6 from the audience. Mr. Brown.

7 MR. BROWN: Yes. Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and
8 honorable board. We have nine speakers. Your first
9 three speakers would be Lieutenant Mark Young,
10 President of LSA. Minister Eric Blount, and Detroit
11 DSA.

12 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

13 MR. BROWN: Lieutenant Young.

14 LIEUTENANT YOUNG: I just want to say thank you
15 to the men and women. I support you as one of you.
16 We all support you. We understand the dangers and
17 hazards that you face daily. Earlier, I think it
18 was Reverend Holley who said, what can we do? Do
19 you know what you can do? You can support them.
20 They see horrendous cases every day. They deal with
21 horrendous cases every day. They work double
22 shifts. They're separated from their families. They
23 don't get much time off. 16 hours become 18 and 20
24 hours a day easy by working a double. They're
25 affected by what they say.

1 I'd like to say this also, for those who are
2 out there that do not understand policing and
3 everything else, there are plenty of spots
4 available. If you want to make a difference, we're
5 hiring. We all want to make a difference. That's
6 why we applied. I wanted to make a difference
7 that's why I got hired with the Detroit Police
8 Department and I'm grateful for it. The census's
9 deadline has been extended until October 31st,
10 2020. It's been horrendous and deplorable how
11 people have signed up.

12 So far, we've got about 325 or 330,000 people.
13 We're going to need that bank, that money, if not,
14 we're going to be in bankruptcy part two and if you
15 think the crime numbers are spiking now if we don't
16 get that money to provide for the 139 square miles
17 of this city that's been through receivership,
18 that's been through bankruptcy, that was on the
19 uptick up until COVID, if we don't get those
20 numbers up in the next two or three weeks, we could
21 be stuck with that number, whatever it is and it
22 won't be 713,000 people, but we still have to
23 provide law enforcement, other city services and
24 provide benefits with whatever number we get. I
25 thank you for my time.

1 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you for making that
2 very important announcement about the census being
3 extended to October 31st.

4 MR. BROWN: Minister Eric Blount.

5 MINISTER BLOUNT: Can you hear me, board?

6 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir.

7 MINISTER BLOUNT: Yes. I'm Minister Eric
8 Blount, a lifelong Detroiter. And I disagree with
9 all of those who say that Detroit's number one
10 issue with public safety, it is not. It is poverty,
11 which is the number one driver of crime. Detroit is
12 the poorest big city in America. For Commander
13 Nick, I thought you were headed down the right path
14 when you properly described facial recognition as
15 being unfairly, unjustly, bringing a light to
16 people of color. That is an accurate description of
17 facial recognition. It just seems like people have
18 to be personally touched by this misidentification
19 before they realize this tool of institutional
20 racism.

21 I'm glad to hear about the mental health
22 program for the police officers because we in the
23 community have to train our teenagers, youth, and
24 even our small children on how to, as we say in our
25 male mentoring program "survive the stop". And yes,

1 the vicious beating by Duane Jones on a citizen is
2 not done with, for it regenerates itself within the
3 officer's relationship to citizens. Facial
4 recognition is not over with. It's recently
5 approved contract by the city's only for three
6 years and there is legislation at various levels of
7 government to eliminate it altogether.

8 Today's free press news article reveals that
9 the board's corruption forces people into the
10 public forum. This year, Chairman Bell, you decided
11 by yourself to suddenly be the only commissioner
12 that reviews, citizen complaints by OCI. This was
13 stated at one of these weekly meetings by the
14 director. Are --

15 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: He was cut off early.

16 MR. BROWN: No, I think we lost him,
17 Commissioner.

18 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay.

19 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Well, we'd like to
20 restore the remaining of Mr. Blount's time.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Excuse me. We've got to move
22 on Mr. Brown.

23 MR. BROWN: Detroit DSA.

1 COMMISSIONER BURTON: He was deliberately cut
2 off by this board and that's out of order, Mr.
3 Chairman.

4 MR. BROWN: No, Mr. Burton. That was a
5 technical problem on my side, I just want to make
6 sure. It may have appeared that way and it may be a
7 lot of practice of the board, but it did not happen
8 at that time and I want to be truthful and honest
9 about it.

10 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, sir.

11 MR. BROWN: Detroit DSA.

12 DETROIT DSA: Before I go ahead, could I allow
13 Minister Blount to finish his comment?

14 CHAIRPERSON BELL: No sir, go ahead. Your time
15 is here.

16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: No. Mr. Chairman, let's
17 have Minister Blount finish his remaining time and
18 allow other speakers to have their remaining time.

19 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Commissioner Burton, thank
20 you. We're moving on. Reset the clock for two
21 minutes for the next speaker.

22 MR. BROWN: Detroit DSA, go ahead, sir.

23 DETROIT DSA: Yeah. Thank you. Hello, this is
24 Anthony Dellicolli from Detroit Democratic
25 Socialists. If I had any trust in this board, I

1 would try and differ some of my time here to
2 Minister Blount so he could finish his comment but,
3 I wanted to condemn Commissioner Bell's
4 authoritarian actions in the meeting last week to
5 silence other commissioners and recess the meeting
6 to throw together amendments to the bylaws in order
7 to avoid his removal. It's absurd that you are the
8 sports representative on NACOLE. And how
9 embarrassing that you've been doing this for 50
10 years and you are still this bad at it. You spent
11 the first 30 minutes of pretty much every meeting
12 going on a monologue and you press your own
13 politics on this board and the public.

14 I'm not sure why Commissioners Carter and
15 Griffie are always allowed excused absences.
16 Commissioner Carter still has more than a year left
17 on her term. If she's not going to attend the
18 meetings every week, she should resign. I'm not
19 clear why every week, only about half of the
20 commissioners and attendants are ever on camera. If
21 this were in person, you would not be able to hide
22 in the corner of the room so you could stare at
23 your cell phone instead of listening to the
24 speakers, you should respect the members of the
25 public to take the time to attend these meetings

1 and give them your full attention with your camera
2 on.

3 Facial recognition technology is not past
4 history as Commissioner Bell called it. You set the
5 policy on it and are now responsible to oversee its
6 use. To deny this fact and hide behind the
7 Corporation council is completely disingenuous and
8 points to the fact that you have no intention of
9 fulfilling your responsibilities as civilian
10 oversight of police. Justice for Shelby Smith and
11 facial recognition technology and project green
12 light. Thank you.

13 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next three speakers
14 would be Ashley Smith, followed by Ms. Michelle
15 George, followed by KM.

16 MS. SMITH: I'm Ashley Smith and, I would just
17 like to say justice for Shelby Smith. Fire Duane
18 Jones. Facial recognition, we really need to review
19 that policy a little bit better. And I yield my
20 time.

21 MR. BROWN: KM? Can't seem to get KM. The next
22 speaker will be Ms. Michelle George. Ms. George?

23 MS. GEORGE: Yes, sir. Hi, Mr. Brown. And to
24 the Assistant Chief and Chairman Bell, and the

1 honorable board. You can hear me, Mr. Brown and the
2 board?

3 MR. BROWN: Yes, ma'am.

4 MS. GEORGE: Okay, thank you. So, I'm glad for
5 the mental health program for the officers, because
6 it is well needed. Lieutenant Mark, yeah, we got to
7 work. We know those officers are working those long
8 hours. If we know the news, the United States
9 attorney general William Barr came to Detroit,
10 there was money given to Chief Craig in this city
11 to certain cities with violence so that money
12 should be used for the income for police so they
13 won't have to work those stressful long hours.
14 That's taxing on the body and makes them more prone
15 to illness. So I would like to build that community
16 relation with Chief Craig on Tuesday.

17 There are things that they can do to get the
18 police more money. Also, to "survive the stop",
19 Jonathan Price was killed in Texas and raised his
20 hand and he was still killed by law enforcement. So
21 we have to deal with policing, not all officers,
22 but the systemic racism of policing blacks. So I
23 hope that's fair. I'm going to try to see what time
24 it is going to try to go to see, to make sure we
25 need more African-American police officers in

1 Detroit. So I wanted to make that comment. And
2 facial recognition, we will continue to fight that
3 fight with that policy because it's systemic racism
4 on with people of color. Even if it solves violent
5 crimes, we know the harm that it has done to our
6 people because other communities can get rid of
7 them. Chairman Bell, would you allow the other
8 commissioners to -- You can't do everything to meet
9 with Chief Craig. I'll tell you what? I'm going to
10 see if Mayor Duggan will appoint me on the board of
11 police commissioners. I'm going to call the mayor
12 and I want him to appoint me. So I'm going to see
13 how you can get an appointment on the board of
14 police commissioners. Thank you very much.

15 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next two speakers
16 will be Scotty Boman, followed by the last three
17 numbers, 124. Mr. Boman?

18 MR. BOMAN: Can you hear me?

19 MR. BROWN: Yes, sir.

20 MR. BOMAN: Okay. First of all, not much is
21 really going to get better on this board until we
22 have some change. And one of the commissioners is
23 just filling in for a vacancy by Conrad Mallett
24 having left early. Well, tomorrow, and by the way,
25 this is Scotty Boman from Detroit Residents

1 Advancing Civilian Oversight, that's DRACO,
2 draco.life. And the reason that I want to bring up
3 the second district is that tomorrow at 7:00 PM, we
4 will be having a candidate forum where each
5 candidate running for that office, for district
6 two, will have an opportunity to present her point
7 of view on why she will be the best commissioner
8 and you can get more information about this by
9 draco.life. And it's posted right there and you
10 will be able to submit questions and you will be
11 able to make comments and the commissioner
12 candidates will each be able to speak.

13 Once we have a newly elected board, things can
14 start changing. Meanwhile, what's happening is
15 Commissioner Bell is blatantly neglecting Robert's
16 Rules of Order. There are all kinds of backhanded
17 dealings where policy decisions are stated to be
18 one way and then commissioners vote another way or
19 pass things on to arbitrators and other people to
20 somehow wash their hands of a matter, as they did
21 in the Shelby Smith case. And of course, we have
22 the ongoing silencing of Commissioner Burton
23 whenever he makes a valid motion and the ignoring
24 of seconded motions, in a case where the Chair is
25 biased. None of that can change until we change the

1 commissioners and I look forward to that happening.

2 So again, tomorrow at 7:00 PM, draco.life.

3 MR. BROWN: Go ahead caller whose number ends
4 in 124.

5 ***-***-124: Yes, am I un-muted?

6 MR. BROWN: Yes.

7 ***-***-124: Can you hear me? Okay, great.
8 Well, first I have to say, I don't have to seek an
9 appointment to the board of police commissioners
10 because I'm happy with my representative at this
11 point, Commissioner Willie Burton, but I would ask
12 the rest of this board to please respect him. And
13 respect the fact that there are people out there
14 who have similar concerns as he does, because for
15 those people, when people act that way, it just
16 feels offensive and like very politely, so many
17 people have come for so long and said what they
18 don't want to see and it still happens anyway and
19 then people wonder why people didn't reply to the
20 census.

21 Well, they keep hearing, oh, we want all these
22 dollars, but they may not be seeing it going their
23 way so think about that. And that's why I think it
24 is very important for public comment. That's one of
25 the things I enjoy the most in the meetings because

1 I learn and it's just nice to hear what other
2 people are thinking. And then, sometimes it seems
3 like some people are informed and sometimes it
4 seems like people went to a chicken dinner and got
5 a number to call. So, anyway, I'm very happy that
6 you're moving forward with mental health because
7 that's an issue for everybody during this COVID
8 situation.

9 And one thing, I am not against police
10 officers because they are like teachers. We expect
11 them to cure people of things. It is not their
12 fault. And they have a lot to deal with, God bless
13 them, but I'm not into the unnecessary use of force
14 and other things where badges -- Anyway, there are
15 good people and bad people in every profession,
16 let's encourage the good ones. So please do more
17 with the crisis intervention and in terms of living
18 in the city, wasn't the land bank discount to
19 attract people to live in the city and not be just
20 be an investment -

21 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, I see KM is calling
22 back. Let me see if I can get that person. KM? Mr.
23 Chair, I can't get KM

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you. That's the end of
25 the public comments and they can always call next

1 week or text or email or contact us if there's a
2 concern that we need to address. Thank you, Mr.
3 Brown. We've come to the end of our agenda.
4 Adjournment. The Chair would entertain a motion for
5 adjournment. I want to thank all of those who
6 participated, DC Bryant and the staff.

7 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: What about new business?

8 CHAIRPERSON BELL: We had that. You witnessed
9 this earlier, sir.

10 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Oh, you did? I'm sorry.

11 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, sir. No problem. And I
12 just want to lift up Commissioner Holley, as
13 he faces health challenges. I will lift up
14 Commissioner Carter as she deals with the
15 housing situation. The Chair will entertain a
16 motion for adjournment.

17 COMMISSIONER CARTER: So moved.

18 CHAIRPERSON BELL: They've been properly moved
19 and supported. Discussion, those in favor, yes?

20 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

21 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Yes, thank you. We stand
22 with you and have a great evening.

23 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you.

24 CHAIRPERSON BELL: Thank you.

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

STATE OF MICHIGAN)

)

COUNTY OF WAYNE)

RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE AND NOTARIZATION

I, Donald Handyside, Court Recorder, do hereby certify
that on October 9, 2020 I recorded the Detroit BOPC
the same being later reduced to typewriting and that the
foregoing is a true and accurate transcription of said
electronic recording taken at such time and place.
I further certify that I am not related to or employed by
any party of this cause or their respective counsel.



DONALD HANDYSIDE (CER 1464)

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: 5/6/27

(

(313) 3:11

*

***9** 4:16 5:2

-

-*-124** 84:5,7

0

03:45 40:8

1

1 21:20

1,273 53:13

10 30:19 34:21,22

10:00 31:7

10th 32:6 45:4 72:11

11 21:20 25:25 26:1 37:22
38:7,14 40:5

11:00 32:8 61:12

11th 40:6

12 31:1 54:18

12% 29:16,17

124 82:17 84:4

12:00 61:9

12th 72:21

133 54:14

136 54:15

139 75:16

141 53:10

148 53:17

15 30:20

15% 29:24

155 8:20

15th 72:9,19

16 54:16 74:23

1680 31:23

17 53:14

18 74:23

18% 29:21

1865 8:20

1974 21:23

1994 67:19

19th 72:1

1:00 68:4 69:6

1st 18:13 53:12

2

2,586 53:9

20 74:23

20% 34:7,8,25

20-something 9:9,11

2019 21:16 71:23

2020 2:7 17:25 18:8 30:3 53:3
54:13 72:19 75:10

2021 34:8

21 54:10,18

21% 29:18 62:24 66:8,13

22 33:2 54:3,4

22% 29:19,24

23% 29:23

23rd 30:3,12

24 17:25

24-hour 3:11

24/7 71:2

24th 18:12

25 54:12 62:22

250 33:25

27 53:22 54:1

28 31:6 53:25

29% 29:20

2:00 32:15 61:12 72:12

3

30 33:25 34:16 66:9 79:11

30% 66:6

30th 53:12 70:3

31 53:24 54:9

313 596-1830 3:6,22

313 596-2482 3:12

31st 75:9 76:3

32 33:1,2 54:4,13

325 75:12

33 53:24

33% 62:22

330,000 75:12

338 54:8

34 31:3 53:21

34% 29:23

353 53:18

360 3:24

38 53:20

3:00 4:11 61:9 72:19,21

3:45 40:10

4

40 53:15

43 62:20

45th 21:17

4:00 4:11 5:4

4th 30:13

5

5,000 31:15**5,200** 4:1**50** 25:1 57:10,12 79:9**50%** 62:8**54** 54:5**54%** 29:19**543** 54:19**55** 54:15**55%** 62:6**579** 54:8**580** 63:3**586** 65:15**596-2499** 3:12**5:00** 68:4 69:7

6

60 30:22**602** 53:10**60th** 70:3**633** 53:16**64** 53:24**66** 53:20

7

713,000 75:22**7:00** 83:3 84:2

8

8 2:7**80** 30:23**81** 30:14 62:19**82** 53:15**86** 53:9**8th** 13:13

9

9% 29:21**9/11** 41:7**90th** 70:3**911** 36:5,7,12 39:14**95** 53:23**96** 30:13**9:00** 72:12**9th** 31:21

A

absence 54:12**absences** 79:15**absent** 6:20**absolutely** 39:6,11 43:9 45:7**absurd** 79:7**Academy** 34:2 54:1**accept** 39:20**access** 4:8 5:11,23**Accessing** 3:1**accident** 30:4**accord** 27:20**account** 2:15**accurate** 76:16**accustomed** 25:14**achieve** 63:11**acknowledge** 5:7**acknowledged** 5:4 56:4**act** 67:19 84:15**actions** 23:3 65:10 69:13 79:4**activate** 13:22**active** 60:5**Activism** 43:25**activities** 37:3,7 40:16 53:2**activity** 30:17 35:14 66:22
73:23**additional** 18:17,21 34:21,22
66:3 71:21 72:14**additionally** 2:18 5:18 34:18
36:4**additions** 71:25**address** 2:18,19 3:23 4:10
27:20 86:2**addressed** 9:22 74:1**adhere** 2:23,25 3:5**adherence** 3:2**adjournment** 86:4,5,16**adjusted** 14:8**adjustments** 16:8**administration** 3:5**administrative** 20:2,24 33:18**administratively** 33:11**Advancing** 83:1**advantage** 37:7**advisement** 49:5,18**advisor** 20:23**advocate** 69:17**affairs** 32:17**affected** 74:25**African-american** 70:19 81:25**afternoon** 2:5 6:2,3,20 12:9,22
13:1 33:16 59:1,17 61:3,24
74:7**agencies** 67:20**agenda** 3:23 4:13 6:10,12,14,
16 7:22 8:1,3,24 11:8,15
13:13,17,19,22 14:3,8,16

16:2,6,10 18:12 22:21 41:4
71:10 72:22 86:3

agendas 3:20 4:2

Aggravated 29:18

agility 53:23

agree 25:7,11 39:6

ahead 50:13 78:12,14,22 84:3

aid 34:1

Ainsley 20:6

air 23:17

Akbar 20:6

alert 68:3

alerts 4:1

allegation 25:18

allegations 24:2

allotted 46:21

allowed 79:15

Alright 8:12 42:8

Alrighty 61:23

altogether 77:7

amen 9:6,7

amendments 79:6

America 76:12

American 31:14

Angels 61:10

Annie 13:7,9

anniversaries 70:3

anniversary 21:17 69:24 70:4

announcement 72:18 73:1,5,
16 76:2

announcements 40:6 48:11

annual 71:23

annually 33:24

Anthony 30:9 78:24

anymore 58:16

apartments 68:14

appeared 53:21,24 78:6

applicants 53:13

applied 75:6

appoint 82:10,12

appointed 22:5 26:2,17 50:23

appointment 82:13 84:9

appreciation 42:25

appreciative 43:3

apprehended 69:14

approach 64:9 69:4

appropriately 2:24

approval 13:13

approve 13:18

approved 77:5

approving 16:2

approximately 33:25

arbitrator 28:16

arbitrator's 28:17

arbitrators 83:19

area 38:7 47:9 66:22

areas 55:22 64:22

arena 27:15 44:2

arm 3:10

armed 66:19

arms 35:16

army 41:8

arrangements 58:14

arrest 30:10,15 73:19

arrests 30:14 64:17 73:23

article 22:23 23:7 77:8

ASAP 11:13

Ashley 80:14,16

asleep 69:7

assaults 29:18,20

assigned 30:2,6,9

assist 20:15 36:13,19 39:13,
16

assistance 42:3 54:9 63:13,21

assistant 20:2 23:12 57:10
80:24

assisting 47:11

associate 22:12

Association 21:1,12,19

assume 23:20 37:4

at- 12:20

at-large 12:23 13:2,9 19:8

at-risk 66:25

atmosphere 60:11

attack 64:3

attacking 27:16

attempting 73:18

attend 9:13 37:4 58:13 79:17,
25

attendance 6:21,22 9:19
19:24 20:8 58:11

attendants 79:20

attended 9:8 22:19

attendee 5:20

attendee's 15:10

attendees 2:10,12,14,17

attending 10:14 30:8

attention 45:14 55:15,21 66:3
80:1

attest 23:16

attorney 81:9

attract 85:19

attrition 54:9,11

audience 74:6

authoritarian 79:4

authority 24:23 28:3**authorization** 69:11**authorizes** 67:19**auto** 68:23,24**average** 62:18,21**avoid** 79:7**aware** 10:16 21:24 38:13**awareness** 31:9,13**awesome** 25:22**awful** 73:21

B

back 34:15 36:2 45:8,9 46:8
60:7 63:25 85:22**background** 5:13 55:17**backhanded** 83:16**bad** 79:10 85:15**badges** 85:14**Bailey** 30:6**balance** 23:6 24:24**balanced** 25:20**ballpark** 31:23**bank** 75:13 85:18**bankruptcy** 75:14,18**barbecue** 61:5**Barr** 81:9**Barry** 61:11**based** 34:12**basically** 41:11 49:7 51:11
55:16**basis** 36:11 56:22**beat** 66:11**beating** 62:22 66:9 77:1**beds** 69:8**began** 33:1**beginning** 34:15 38:9**behalf** 20:18 33:4 46:19 58:24**behavioral** 35:6 36:11 39:11,
15**belief** 63:8**Bell** 5:25 6:1,7,13,19 7:8,11,
16,19 8:10 9:7 10:6,8,9 12:11,
12,16,20,24 13:3,6,8,10,12,
16,19,25 14:5,9,12,14,15,19
15:16,23,25 16:3,7,15,18,22
17:3,6,9,11,13,16,18,20,23
18:3,6,11,17,21 19:1,4,6,8,11,
13,15,18 20:10,13 21:7,14
29:3,10,11 32:21 33:14 36:24
37:19 39:4,19,21,23 40:23,24
42:10 43:6,8 44:4,22,25 46:11
47:18 48:11,14 49:1,12,16,20,
21 50:5,11,13 51:5,18,24
52:1,3,5,7,9,12,16,19,22,25
55:3 56:1,8,11 57:3,7,13,16,
23 58:5,20 59:3,7,13,19,20
61:22 70:12 71:7 72:17,23
73:7,11,17,22 74:5,12 76:1,6
77:10,21 78:14,19 80:4,24
82:7 83:15 85:24 86:8,11,18,
21,24**Bell's** 79:3**Belle** 32:13 47:14**Belmont** 47:11**bench** 25:23**benefits** 75:24**biased** 83:25**big** 55:4 76:12**bike** 32:9 47:15**bill** 48:19 49:23**bit** 15:9,11 59:11 62:8 67:17
80:19**black** 65:5 70:19**blacks** 81:22**blankets** 68:11**blatantly** 83:15**bless** 8:16 9:3 85:12**blessed** 8:19 68:6 73:2**blessing** 8:22**blessings** 8:18,23,24**Blossom** 19:25**Blount** 74:10 76:4,5,7,8 78:13,
17 79:2**Blount's** 77:20**blue** 15:5 31:18 60:17**board** 2:6 3:4,6,21 4:10 5:15
6:2,3 8:18 9:21 10:16,18
14:23 15:3 19:24 21:17,20,22
22:4,9 23:22 24:21 25:7,21
27:6,19,23 28:1 33:16 37:17
51:9 52:23 56:7,8 59:2,12
61:3,24 63:25 67:15 68:16
70:9,11 71:9,20 72:13 74:8
76:5 78:2,7,25 79:13 81:1,2
82:10,13,21 83:13 84:9,12**board's** 2:23 3:9,16 4:5,9 5:9
19:22 77:9**boards** 25:15**board's** 3:13**bodies** 42:4 66:2**body** 18:11 29:1 43:20 48:19,
20 50:17,20 81:14**body's** 18:22**bogged** 48:7**Boman** 82:16,17,18,20,25**BOPC** 3:3,15 4:1,3 5:6 32:24
71:21,23**BOPC@DETROITMI.GOV**
3:21**bopc@detroitmi.gov.** 3:7**bottom** 25:5**bow** 8:13**breast** 31:8,13**briefly** 43:1

bring 50:19 65:8 83:2**bringing** 55:15,20 76:15**broken** 69:3**Brooks** 44:15**brought** 10:12 38:11 65:4**Brown** 7:18 19:25 26:24 52:12
55:9 74:6,7,13 76:4 77:16,22,
23 78:4,11,22 80:13,21,23
81:1,3 82:15,19 84:3,6 85:21
86:3**Bryant** 20:11,12,16,17 21:8
28:20 29:13,14 33:21 39:22
40:4,13,14 41:1,7,20 42:1,25
43:5 46:2,25 47:14,17,22
54:24 66:7 73:6 86:6**budget** 56:18**build** 81:15**building** 30:21**Burch** 9:21,24 10:7 11:24
12:8,9 16:14 17:5 18:24
37:10,18,20 38:3 39:6,20
40:1,20,23 46:1 47:1 48:5,10
52:5,6 72:22,23 73:9,14,21
74:3**Bureau** 63:21 67:24**burglaries** 29:23**Burns** 61:7**Burton** 15:1,2,13,21 16:16,21
17:8 18:9,19 19:3 27:5 28:23
29:3,5,6,12 48:12,15 49:2,12,
19,22 50:12,14 52:10,11
77:19 78:1,4,16,19 83:22
84:11**business** 25:15 48:8,9,13
63:18 86:7**buy** 28:14**bylaws** 2:23 5:9 24:8,13 79:6

C

calendar 3:17**call** 7:20 8:5 15:3,22 16:17,20,
23 17:1 18:22 20:19 29:9
40:11 42:22 49:11 50:14
51:22 70:2 82:11 85:5,25**call-response** 39:7**called** 27:11,12 28:25 30:19
80:4**caller** 84:3**callers** 36:9,10**calling** 16:18,19,23 36:11
85:21**calls** 34:13 36:8,9,16 39:16,17**camera** 15:4 79:20 80:1**Campus** 31:6**canceling** 59:10**cancer** 31:9,13,14**candidate** 83:4,5**candidates** 83:12**can't** 14:1**capita** 65:17**capstone** 65:1**captain** 20:21 21:5 47:23
57:11 59:17,20 61:19,22**captains** 9:9 58:23**capture** 37:2 40:25**car** 29:21 63:22 67:18,22 68:2
69:3,12 70:16**care** 10:22 35:18 63:9 70:5**career** 55:10,12 58:22 72:10**Carl** 71:16**carry** 10:22**cars** 45:21 67:3 69:2**Carter** 6:22 7:7,9,10,12,13,14
12:14,15,16 17:10 19:5 52:3,4
79:14,16 86:14,17**case** 27:10 43:13 44:2 57:14
73:19 83:21,24**cases** 62:22 66:20 74:20,21**category** 66:16**CCW** 30:14**cease-fire** 64:8**celebrated** 21:16**celebration** 21:18**cell** 79:23**census** 76:2 84:20**census's** 75:8**center** 36:7,12 39:14 47:11**CEO** 44:15**ceremony** 9:8 31:5**certified** 26:7,10**cetera** 23:3**chair** 4:23 7:7,15 13:8,11,24
14:10,14,22 15:1,7 16:24
19:20 20:16 21:4,15 23:25
24:22,25 25:3 29:1,14 32:23
33:17 37:18,20 39:3,5,21
40:14 41:20 44:6,11,17 45:5,
17 46:2 47:1 50:1 51:4 52:24
58:18 59:18 71:6,8 74:7 80:13
82:15 83:24 85:21,23 86:4,15**chairman** 16:16 18:10,19
28:23 29:7,10 40:22 41:6 42:9
48:12 49:12,20 56:9,14,15
77:10 78:3,16 80:24 82:7**chairmanship** 23:2 25:1**Chairperson** 5:25 6:1,7,13,19
7:8,11,16,19 8:10 9:7 10:6,9
12:11,16,20,24 13:3,6,10,12,
16,19,25 14:5,9,12,15,19
15:16,23,25 16:3,7,15,18,22
17:3,6,9,11,13,16,18,20,23
18:3,6,11,17,21 19:1,4,6,8,11,
13,15,18 20:10,13 21:7,14
29:3,11 32:21 33:14 36:24
37:19 39:4,19,23 40:24 42:10
43:6,8 44:4,22,25 46:11 47:18
48:11,14 49:1,16,21 50:5,11,
13 51:5,18,24 52:1,3,5,7,9,12,
16,19,22,25 55:3 56:1,8,11

57:3,7,13,16,23 58:5,20 59:3,
7,13,19 61:22 70:12 71:7
72:17 73:7,11,17,22 74:5,12
76:1,6 77:21 78:14,19 85:24
86:8,11,18,21,24

challenge 27:21 63:23 67:5,10

challenges 62:9 65:12 86:13

challenging 60:9

chance 44:5

change 28:24 29:8 82:22
83:25

changed 6:11

changing 83:14

chaplain 8:6,8,11 9:8,18,22
10:3,5,13 31:20 32:2

chaplains 31:24 61:6

chapters 22:10

charged 33:7

charter 23:23 26:19,20 28:9

check 24:24

Chene 68:12

chicken 85:4

chief 3:9 10:2 20:5,11,17,18,
23 26:9 27:13 28:8 31:19
44:9,12,14 46:20 57:10,11
60:15 61:4,16 66:7 73:3 80:24
81:10,16 82:9

child 60:11

children 60:22 76:24

Chris 20:19 32:24

Christ 9:5

church 25:4 61:13

circle 23:17

CIT 34:4,17,19,25 35:4,5

citations 30:16

cities 81:11

citizen 77:1,12

citizens 47:3 48:17,20 50:17
55:2 69:7 70:24 77:3

city 2:17 3:16 10:17 31:12
36:20 42:4 43:20,21 49:8
51:16 57:12 58:1 62:4,11,21,
23 63:1,4 65:6,10 66:8,15
67:6 75:17,23 76:12 81:10
85:18,19

city's 77:5

citywide 47:23

civilian 21:19 80:9 83:1

civilians 53:9 54:4,8,11

claims 33:9

clarification 15:8

class 9:11 58:10

clear 79:19

clearance 62:21 66:19

clock 78:20

close 8:12

closed 8:2 33:11

closest 63:4

co-responding 39:10

co-response 35:2

Cohen 25:22

Cole 21:2

Coles 20:3 52:23 53:1 55:5
56:4,6 57:9 58:7,17,18

collaboration 31:19

colleagues 35:23 48:22 50:22

color 76:16 82:4

cometh 8:14

command 58:4,5,15,24 59:8

commander 8:8,11 10:5
20:20,21 38:13 47:20,23 48:3
57:11 59:1,3,5,9,14 61:15,20,
23 71:6 76:12

commend 9:17 70:17,25

comment 2:11 23:6 42:25
51:9 78:13 79:2 82:1 84:24

commented 47:2

comments 4:6,8,13,19 5:4,5
11:21 23:4 48:16 49:14 50:9,
15 74:5 83:11 85:25

commercial 56:18,21

commission 16:9 21:17,23
50:19 51:2 56:2

commissioner 6:5,9,19,21,22,
23 7:6,7,9,11,12,14,15,17,18
8:18 9:16,20,24 10:2,7 11:23
12:8,9,12,14,16,18,21,22,24
13:1,2,4,5,14,15,17 14:3,5,7,
10 15:1,2,5,13,21,25 16:12,
13,14,16,21 17:2,5,8,10,12,
13,15,16,17,18,19,20 18:2,4,
9,19,24 19:3,5,7,8,10,11,12,
13,14,15 22:1,2 23:16 24:19
25:19 26:24 27:5,16,17 28:23
29:3,5,6,12 33:14 37:6,10,18,
20 38:2,3 39:6,20 40:1,20,22,
23 41:4,6,24 42:8,10,11,12,
21,22,24 43:8,9 44:7,23,24,25
45:1,12,18 46:1,10 47:1,18
48:5,10,12,15 49:2,12,19,22,
23 50:3,12,14 51:4,5,7,21,23,
24,25 52:1,2,3,4,5,6,7,9,10,
11,12,14,15,17,18 55:9 56:9,
10,11,12,13 57:3,5,6,8,15,22
58:3 72:22,23 73:9,14,21 74:3
77:11,15,17,18,19 78:1,10,16,
19 79:3,16 80:4 83:7,11,15,22
84:11 86:7,10,12,14,17,20,23

Commissioner's 71:18

commissioners 2:6 3:4,7 4:11
10:10,11 11:2 22:4 23:1
26:14,17,21,23 44:5 47:8,19
51:18 52:13 70:12,24 73:13
79:5,14,20 82:8,11,14,22
83:18 84:1,9

committee 44:13

committing 64:12

communicate 41:2

communicated 27:5

communicating 38:12
communication 27:3 36:7
 43:14
communications 4:13 36:13
 39:16
communities 82:6
community 10:3,18 20:1 43:3,
 24 61:7 62:17 63:13,16 64:19
 66:25 67:4 72:19 73:4 76:23
 81:15
compete 62:11
competitors 63:5
complaint 3:8,11 51:12
complaints 3:11 45:23,25
 77:12
complement 39:13
complete 4:25
completely 42:1 80:7
complexes 68:14
complied 24:21
complimentary 56:20
computer 2:14 5:1
concentrate 46:8
concept 22:6 35:7,20
concern 11:11 27:18 42:11
 49:5 51:19 64:23 70:18 86:2
concerned 12:5
concerns 10:24 23:4 26:22
 37:8 41:3 42:23 46:23 47:22
 48:18 50:19,21 51:3 71:2
 84:14
concluded 54:20
concludes 20:9 21:13 72:15
condemn 79:3
conditional 55:14
condo 68:14
conduct 10:20

conjunction 21:18
connect 51:9,11
connected 43:1
Conrad 82:23
consideration 71:24
consorted 23:12
constant 46:3
constantly 45:22
constituents 50:21,24
consulted 23:5
contact 3:3,8 55:12 86:1
continue 35:21 56:22 62:14
 66:1 74:4 82:2
continued 8:23 26:18
continuous 54:13
continuously 8:19
contract 28:5 77:5
control 57:21
controls 5:1
convene 15:17,19
conversation 65:3
convey 46:22
Conway 20:22 59:6,9,14,16
 70:7
cooperate 69:25
cooperation 10:20 11:9,16
 12:2 67:20
cooperative 67:23
Coordinator 20:1
copied 10:24
copious 37:13
copy 6:11 7:23 16:7 56:18,21
Corbett 59:25
core 46:12
corner 31:22 79:22

Corporal 28:15
corporation 23:12 28:2,11
 80:7
corps 9:9 10:13 31:21
correct 57:13 58:17,19 73:20
corrections 18:18,22
correspondence 71:10 72:15
corruption 77:9
council 27:25 28:11 80:7
councils 28:2
counsel 23:12
countless 8:21
country 25:13
counts 33:7
County 33:6
couple 63:5 71:19
court 19:23
courthouse 30:21
covered 52:13
COVID 31:2 37:6 58:11,17
 60:6 75:19 85:7
Craig 10:2 20:18 26:9 44:9
 73:3 81:10,16 82:9
credit 9:20 43:4
crime 29:15,17,22 41:14,18
 62:10 63:1,4,22 64:1,5,12
 65:14,16 66:6,8,10,13,15,16
 67:12 70:4 75:15 76:11
crimes 67:10 69:6 82:5
criminal 33:5 55:15,21 66:22
criminals 67:6
criminogenic 35:15
crisis 34:5 35:4 85:17
criteria 37:5
critical 11:10
Cromwell 20:6

crucial 46:18**cure** 85:11**current** 53:7 66:15**curve** 69:1**custody** 64:17 67:11**cut** 46:17 60:7 77:15 78:1

D

daily 42:17 74:17**dangers** 74:16**data** 45:9 64:22**data-driven** 64:8**date** 2:7 33:13 59:10

Davis 6:5,9,20 7:15,17 12:18,
19 13:15,17 14:3,5,7 16:9
17:12 19:7 44:24,25 45:1,12,
18 46:10 49:23 50:3 52:14,15,
16,18 56:10,12 57:6,7,8,15,22
58:3 59:24 77:15,18 78:10

day 24:13 70:3 74:20,21,24**day-to-day** 56:22

DC 20:12,16 21:8 28:20 29:13,
14 33:21 39:21 40:3,13,14
41:1,7,20 42:1,25 43:5 45:18
46:2,11,25 47:14,16,22 54:23
73:6 86:6

deadline 75:9

deal 27:10 38:14 39:1 64:4
74:20 81:21 85:12

dealing 42:20 63:24 69:19**dealings** 83:17**deals** 86:14**dear** 48:6 70:23**death** 22:14**decal** 68:17**decals** 68:1,9**December** 34:21**decided** 77:10**deciding** 24:23**decisions** 83:17**declined** 26:24**decrease** 29:22 66:6,12**dedicated** 64:15**deemed** 4:22**delay** 15:9**deleted** 14:20,22,24**deleting** 16:9**deliberately** 78:1**Dellicolli** 78:24**Democratic** 78:24**deny** 80:6

department 19:21 31:3,14
34:19 40:12 41:22 43:12,19,
22 47:3,4 53:7 55:19 75:8

department's 12:1**departments** 37:9**deplorable** 75:10

deputy 8:2 20:11,17,22 57:10
60:15 61:4 66:7

description 76:16**designated** 67:22**desired** 68:17**detail** 37:13 63:20**detailed** 53:4**details** 41:3 46:3**detectives** 10:12**determination** 64:13**determine** 69:9

Detroit 2:6,18 3:4 8:25 21:21
25:4 31:12,20 32:8,14 33:23
42:5 43:11 54:6,7 55:19 57:12
58:1 62:4 65:7,10 70:22 71:17
73:3 74:10 75:7 76:11 77:23
78:11,12,22,23,24 81:9 82:1,

25

Detroit's 76:9**Detroiter** 76:8**Detroitmi.gov** 4:2**detroitmi.gov/bopc** 3:17**detroitmi.gov/bopc.** 3:14**develop** 67:20**device** 5:3**dial** 3:6,22 5:2

dialogue 11:2 26:17 28:22
46:17

differ 79:1**difference** 75:4,5,6**difficult** 58:11 67:7**diligence** 50:25 73:24**dinner** 85:4**direction** 28:12 55:20**directions** 46:7**directives** 3:19**directly** 39:18

director 20:19,23 32:17,18,24
33:18 36:25 38:1,3 39:19 41:2
43:1 44:8 45:1 46:20 66:24
77:14

Disabled 54:15**disagree** 25:8,11 76:8**disagreements** 23:21**disciplinary** 24:16**discount** 85:18**discovers** 69:2**discrepancies** 6:25**discrimination** 58:6**discuss** 11:15**discussed** 44:8 72:11

discussion 16:8 18:17 23:11
44:20 50:6,11,16 71:18 86:19

discussions 9:15
disingenuous 29:1,8 80:7
dismissal 3:1 4:24
dispersed 31:1
display 68:2
disqualified 53:16,17
distance 60:3
distributed 3:24
district 12:5,6,7,10,11,12,17,
 19 15:4 17:4,6,9,11 18:23
 19:1,4,6 37:22 49:23 83:3,5
division 20:5
document 72:5
documentation 27:9
documents 53:4
dollars 84:22
domain 11:14
domestic 31:8,11 69:16,17,20
Don 19:23
donated 31:15
donuts 45:20
double 74:21,24
downtown 35:8
DPD 10:2 40:12 42:15 71:12
 72:9
DRACO 83:1
draco.life. 83:2,9 84:2
draft 3:18,23 4:1 72:4
drastically 11:17
drive 56:3
drive-up 55:12
driven 68:4
driver 30:4 69:11 76:11
drop 11:21 54:18
dropped 49:4

DSA 74:11 77:23 78:11,12,22,
 23
Duane 77:1 80:17
due 24:3 28:19 50:24 59:4
 73:24
Duggan 82:10
duly 50:22
duty 24:7 26:12
DWIHN 33:22 36:21 44:15
Dwyer 42:12

E

earlier 15:8 72:12 74:17 86:9
early 77:15 82:24
East 68:7
Eastside 45:13,24
easy 74:24
echo 51:19
echoed 24:20
edits 71:25 72:7
educating 63:16
effect 18:14
effort 46:9 51:10
Elaine 20:17
elect 24:10
elected 21:8 23:21 24:1,6,9,14
 26:2 27:4 50:22 83:13
election 24:10
elective 24:7
electronic 60:14
eliminate 77:7
Elliott 65:23 66:4,23
email 2:16,18,19 3:6,20,21,22
 4:10 11:12 14:14 51:12 55:8
 86:1
embarrassing 79:9

embedded 36:6,12 39:15
 69:15
emphasize 51:7
emphasized 23:8
employment 53:7 55:14
encounter 68:6
encourage 68:5 85:16
end 22:23 34:8 35:10,11 36:4
 85:24 86:3
endeavor 61:11
ends 84:3
enforce 46:5
enforcement 30:2 75:23 81:20
engage 48:2
enjoy 84:25
enlarge 9:3
entertain 70:10 86:4,15
entire 66:15
entitled 65:2
epicenter 66:24
Eric 21:5 74:10 76:4,7
error 54:3
established 8:20 21:23
evening 9:12 86:22
event 31:24 32:7,13 54:22
 71:15
events 31:18 61:14
evolves 60:9
exam 53:20
excessively 49:7
excited 36:17 68:15 73:2
excuse 14:21 15:13,16,21
 77:21
excused 6:20 79:15
excused/absent 12:7

executed 41:9,10 43:14
execution 42:19
executive 44:13
exoneration 33:8
expansion 45:2
expect 85:10
experts 23:5
expire 23:24
explain 7:21
explained 7:2
exposed 61:1
express 48:18
extended 75:9 76:3
extremely 10:15
eyes 8:12

F

face 20:14 67:10 74:17
Facebook 4:5
faces 86:13
facial 27:24 71:13 76:14,17
 77:3 80:3,11,18 82:2
fact 40:8 80:6,8 84:13
factors 35:15
facts 27:10
fail 40:15
failed 52:21 53:21,24
Failure 2:25
fair 55:10,12 72:10 81:23
Faith 31:17 60:17
Fallen 61:10
falling 42:9
familiar 67:15
families 74:22

family 58:10
Fascism 30:19
fast 40:2
fault 85:12
favor 16:4,10 86:19
favorite 58:21,23 59:8
fax 3:12
FBI 42:13 73:24
feasible 11:7
feature 6:17
federal 25:23 30:21
feedback 11:20 71:24
feel 26:3 38:18 41:12 46:22
feels 84:16
fellow 25:7 48:22
felony 33:7
fewest 65:15
fight 82:2,3
filled 53:8,10
filling 82:23
final 72:1
finally 5:5 36:17
find 3:17
fine 2:20 38:21 43:11
finish 78:13,17 79:2
finished 56:6
fire 40:12 80:17
fired 27:13
fiscal 53:12
Fisher 61:7
fixed 24:13
floor 29:13
Floyd's 22:14
flyer 55:9 56:2 71:15 72:10

flyers 72:14
FMLA 54:13
focused 34:17 35:8
folks 67:6
follow 24:19 26:20 27:23
force 41:11 46:4 85:13
forces 77:9
forgetting 45:14
form 4:25 66:1
formality 27:8
format 49:8,9
fortunate 68:7
fortune 63:15
forum 2:22,24 4:7,8 11:16
 23:18 25:24 37:5 58:16 77:10
 83:4
forums 5:11 11:24 48:4
forward 43:23 45:2 56:2 58:9
 72:21 84:1 85:6
found 33:3,4,10 42:4 43:20
fourth 30:9 35:25
free 22:24 55:13 77:8
frequent 36:9
Friday 61:17
fulfilled 23:24
fulfilling 80:9
full 46:4 80:1
functions 24:25
funds 68:8
future 8:4 60:13

G

gained 9:9
gallery 5:21 15:11
game 31:22 61:17

gave 26:21 29:7
general 81:9
generally 30:20
George 80:15,22,23 81:4
Giaquinto 20:21 59:1,5,9,14
 61:20,23 71:6
give 9:20 23:6 36:3,14 39:24
 41:13 45:18 46:21 48:20
 54:25 80:1
giving 11:20 45:13
glad 35:23 58:12 73:22 76:21
 81:4
glorify 8:17 9:4
go-ahead 60:23
goal 34:8 62:16
God 8:15,17,19,22 9:1,2 85:12
Gonzales 54:21 55:6,7 56:23
good 2:5 6:2 12:8,22 13:1,3
 20:13 26:20 27:1 33:16 37:9
 42:11 59:1,17 61:3,24 63:15
 69:7 70:7 74:7 85:15,16
Govdelivery 3:25
government 77:7
governments 67:24
governor 73:17,19
graduates 54:1
graduating 31:6 58:10
graduation 31:5
Grant 20:23
grateful 75:8
Graveline 20:19 32:18,23,24
 33:15
great 55:11 56:23 63:20 66:13
 84:7 86:22
greatest 62:10 63:23 66:6,12,
 14
green 80:11

Greenlight 28:4 64:24 65:4
Griffie 6:21 79:15
grill 61:5
group 30:19,22 68:8
groups 30:18
growing 22:11,12,13
guess 9:10 14:1 41:15
guest 73:13
guests 21:13
gun 67:16
guns 30:14
guys 55:8,23 60:4

H

Ha 20:23
half 10:21 11:6 79:19
hand 4:15 5:2 26:6 81:20
Handbook 72:5
handguns 30:13
handle 36:7,16 39:15
handout 60:4
hands 83:20
Handyside 19:23
happen 32:10 64:2 78:7
happened 22:14 41:7
happening 83:14 84:1
happy 73:2 84:10 85:5
hard 7:23 60:11 62:11
harm 82:5
hat 44:2
hate 45:13
have-- 29:2
hazards 74:17
headed 41:21 43:18 76:13

headquarters 32:9,15
heads 8:13
health 32:20,22 33:20,23,25
 34:12 35:6,18,19 36:6,8,12,23
 38:6,10,19,22 39:11 44:10
 76:21 81:5 85:6 86:13
hear 6:2 8:8 17:1 46:13 49:21
 50:1,20,23,25 76:5,21 81:1
 82:18 84:7 85:1
heard 28:22 62:3 64:1 66:7
 70:7
hearing 24:15,16 84:21
hearts 42:17 48:6 70:23
heed 9:25
held 72:11
helped 16:9 47:4
helpful 69:19
Hernandez 12:21,22,23 13:14
 14:10 16:12 17:14,15 18:2
 19:9,10 42:21,22,24 51:4,6,7,
 22,23 86:20,23
hide 79:21 80:6
high 68:10
higher 62:25
highest 66:19
highlight 37:2 67:17
highlights 21:21,22 62:2
Hills 8:13
hired 53:14 55:18 75:7
hires 54:2,4
hiring 53:5 75:5
history 28:3 80:4
hold 11:23 66:5,11
Holley 13:4,5 17:18,19 18:4
 19:13,14 22:1 23:16 24:19
 40:22 41:5,6,24 42:8,10 52:1,
 2 56:9,11,13 57:4 74:18 86:7,
 10,12

Holt 13:7,8,9,24 14:1,13,18
15:24,25 16:1,5,11 17:20,21
18:1,15 19:15,16 44:6,7,17
52:7,8

home 30:5,8,11

homeless 35:14 36:19 67:1,8

Homelessness 65:19

homepage 4:3

homes 63:17

homicide 42:16

homicides 29:18 62:24

honest 78:8

honorable 5:15 14:23 33:16
37:17 52:23 59:2 61:24 67:15
70:9 71:9,20 72:13 74:8 81:1

honors 20:14

hope 9:25 27:20 37:1 39:23
47:20 61:16 67:2 70:13,16
81:23

hoping 55:11

horrendous 74:20,21 75:10

horrible 57:15

horrific 41:14

host 4:21

hosting 21:18

hot 38:7 64:25

hotspots 35:13

hour 4:11 10:21 11:6

hours 10:25 11:22 68:4 69:6
74:23,24 81:8,13

House 31:12

housing 35:18 36:20 86:15

HR 20:4 52:22

HRD 36:20

human 71:13

hundred 22:10 63:5

I

icon 4:15

idea 22:22

identified 21:11 67:12

identify 2:10 64:10,22 69:5

ignoring 83:23

ill 66:25 67:8

illness 81:15

images 4:22

immediately 64:15

impact 60:22 68:20

impacts 70:15

implementation 72:1

implemented 63:11

implementing 63:19,21

important 4:18 32:22 39:9
73:16 76:2 84:24

improvement 62:14,15

in- 34:2

in-house 23:8

in-person 73:8

in-process 53:14

inappropriate 4:23

incident 42:6 47:10 66:17

incidents 68:22

include 38:13 61:6 71:11

included 40:12

including 37:21 41:15

income 81:12

incoming 71:10 72:15

Incorporated 68:7

increase 29:17 50:8 62:5,23,
24 66:22 67:2

increases 63:7

individual 22:11

individually 37:6

individuals 34:4 35:17 64:18
68:18

information 3:3,15 4:4 6:5
13:15 33:20 37:12 40:25 53:4
54:6 55:1 59:15 72:13 83:8

informed 46:24 47:25 85:3

initially 23:4 69:25 70:14

initiate 69:5

initiative 35:3,5 36:18 37:11
40:17 44:7,10,12,21 67:23
69:3

initiatives 32:20 33:20 35:2
36:22

injured 30:2,7,10

Innovation 19:21

inserted 61:18

inside 61:1

insisted 59:10

institutional 76:19

instructions 4:6

integrated 33:23 36:5

intelligence 64:8

intention 80:8

interact 47:21

interaction 22:21

interest 53:15

interested 68:19

interests 70:6

interface 47:21

Interim 20:5 31:12

intermingled 32:3

intermittent 54:13

internal 32:16

internet 7:23

interrupt 72:24
 interrupting 5:13
 intervention 34:5 35:4 85:17
 introduce 10:11 59:15,22
 introduced 44:9
 introduction 10:10 19:19
 introductions 20:9
 investigates 3:10
 investigation 33:11 41:21
 43:17,18 47:10
 investigations 3:8 32:17,25
 33:2,12
 investigative 3:10
 Investigator 3:9 20:2,5,6,7,8
 investment 85:20
 invited 4:21 9:12 21:13 36:2
 invocation 8:7
 involved 30:3 41:17 42:14
 Isle 32:13 47:14
 issue 6:23 11:15 12:5 18:7
 25:10 27:8 37:21 38:10 46:3
 57:19,22 70:22 74:1 76:10
 85:7
 issued 30:16
 issues 9:13 22:13,15 23:20
 30:25 32:16
 item 17:23 19:18 21:14 72:6
 items 8:1,3 10:12 14:20,22,24
 60:7 71:11
 it's 11:7 55:11
 I'm 33:17

J

jackings 29:21
 James 20:3,18 21:2 73:3
 January 30:3

Jefferson 30:25 68:7,12 70:15
 Jesus 9:5 12:22
 job 7:22 58:9
 join 2:14 3:20 4:20 5:20 41:11
 joined 7:12 41:8
 joining 4:19 5:19 12:6 21:1
 Jonathan 81:19
 Jones 7:6 12:25 13:1,2 16:13
 17:16,17 19:11,12 25:19
 28:15 43:8,9 51:24,25 77:1
 80:18
 Jonya 20:1
 Judge 25:22
 July 23:25 53:12
 June 23:25 24:1
 justice 55:15,21 63:21 67:24
 80:10,17

K

keeping 12:2
 Keith 30:9
 Kentucky 22:15
 kick 32:14 68:8
 kicked 68:15
 kicking 31:17
 kicks 32:8
 kid 41:9,10,15
 kidnap 73:18
 kidnapping 30:10
 kids 47:13 60:10
 killed 41:14 81:19,20
 kind 41:13 43:25 55:1 60:7,9,
 14 62:8
 kinds 83:16
 KM 80:15,21 85:21,22,23

L

lack 53:15
 lag 5:22 15:9
 land 85:18
 larceny 29:23 68:21,24
 large 10:3 12:21 17:13
 largely 43:18
 late 7:18
 launch 35:9 45:10
 law 75:23 81:20
 Lawrence 20:5
 laws 5:10
 leadership 23:23 25:21
 learn 85:1
 leave 40:18 54:12,14
 left 79:16 82:24
 legal 20:23
 legally 28:13
 legislation 77:6
 Lena 21:5
 letter 71:16,20
 level 41:16
 levels 25:2 77:6
 Levin 71:16
 liaison 31:20 61:16
 liberties 65:13
 Liddell 21:5
 Lieutenant 20:3,25 21:2,11
 52:23 53:1 55:5 56:6 57:8
 58:7,17,18 74:9,13,14 81:6
 Lieutenants 21:1,12
 Life 43:25
 lifelong 76:8
 lift 86:12,13

light 65:9 76:15 80:12
lightly 24:2
limited 9:14
limits 43:21
link 4:3 15:10 73:12
linked 35:17
links 3:19
Lisa 12:14
Lisonya 20:7
list 3:20
listed 37:8 71:11
listening 79:23
live 12:10 57:12,17,18 58:1
 63:9 85:19
living 85:17
local 25:3 40:9
locals 67:23
located 65:22 66:23
location 64:3
locations 64:6
lock 7:25
logging 2:21
long 10:15 11:24 29:7 30:13
 49:7 81:7,13 84:17
long-drawn-out 10:25
longer 69:2
looped 44:19
Lord 9:5
lost 69:18 77:16
lot 25:14 46:5,6,8 47:22 48:17
 55:15,20 60:24 78:7 85:12
lots 45:25
Louisville 22:15
love 12:10 37:6 57:1
lower 62:8,20 63:2

lowest 63:1
LSA 74:10
Lt 56:4

M

Mack 65:21,23 66:4,23
Madam 15:14
made 24:2 38:5 40:6 73:19,23
Madrigal 20:8
maintain 51:16
major 10:12
make 2:11 4:14 5:22 7:20
 11:8,14 16:8 17:1 25:18 37:16
 40:24 46:21 47:6,13,24 48:5
 58:14 64:13 73:1,5,16 75:4,5,
 6 78:5 81:24 82:1 83:11
makes 41:10 81:14 83:23
making 27:17 62:16 64:16
 65:11 76:1
male 76:25
Mallett 82:23
man 43:13
manage 25:25 26:1
managing 25:15
manner 12:2
manpower 53:5
march 30:24
Mark 20:25 21:11 30:1 74:9
 81:6
Martin 13:2
Martius 31:7
masked 2:13
matchless 9:4
matter 23:10,11 27:8 28:1,15
 40:8 83:20
matters 23:17

mayor 22:5 26:2 27:11 28:6,8
 44:14 55:20 57:20,23 82:10,
 11
mayor's 56:16
Mcdaniel 60:19 61:2,3
Mcdaniels 59:23
Mcginnis 20:20
MCOS 53:18
meaningful 26:18
means 11:10 56:1
meantime 73:15
measures 65:13
mechanism 12:1
mechanisms 51:21
medical 54:14
mediums 51:8,13
meet 10:23 37:5 47:24 82:8
meeting 2:6,12,22 3:1,17 4:7,
 14,19,20,24 5:11,14,18,19
 6:3,16,24 8:4,5,19 10:15
 11:18 15:17,19 19:22 22:18
 24:23 48:4 63:15 72:18,19
 73:4,7,8,10 79:4,5,11
meetings 2:9 10:15,21 11:6,
 17,25 44:9 48:3 49:2,6 77:13
 79:18,25 84:25
meets 10:17
member 25:3
members 10:24 19:24 24:21
 25:7 26:4,6 31:1,3 43:24 53:6,
 8 58:10 79:24
membership 22:11,12
men 43:11 71:3 74:15
men's 70:25
mental 32:20,22 33:20,25
 34:12 35:6,18,19 36:6,8,23
 38:6,10,19,22 44:7,10 76:21
 81:5 85:6

mentally 66:25 67:8
mention 40:15
mentioned 11:24 37:3 44:12
 64:1 66:24 70:14
mentoring 76:25
merged 61:10,15
merit 27:21
merits 23:14 24:3
message 2:9 5:23 64:18 72:25
Messiah 61:13
Michael 20:20 30:6
Michelle 80:14,22
Michigan 31:23 65:2
microphones 5:17,23
miles 75:16
Military 54:14
minimum 31:15
Minister 74:10 76:4,5,7 78:13,
 17 79:2
ministers 40:9 42:14
minute 18:20 35:1
minutes 3:18 5:6 17:24 28:19
 48:16,17,20 49:3,8,15 50:9,
 10,15,18 51:10,15,20 78:21
 79:11
misconduct 24:7 33:4,5
misidentification 76:18
missing 14:19
mobile 5:2
model 39:8
modified 18:13
moment 26:10 64:25
moments 63:15
Monday 26:13 34:20 61:9
 71:25
money 31:10,13 75:13,16

81:10,11,18
monitor 6:25 7:24
monitoring 19:22
monologue 79:12
monster 28:9
month 26:23 53:3,19 54:1
 66:16,18
monthly 53:1 54:18 71:14
months 38:24 62:4
morning 26:13
motion 16:7 17:22 18:13
 19:17 48:21 49:14 50:2,6,8,
 11,12,14,16 52:21 83:23 86:4,
 16
motions 83:24
motor 29:24 67:18,21 68:1,21,
 24
motorbikes 47:13
motorcade 61:10
motorcycles 32:12
Mount 61:14 65:23 66:4,23
move 5:20 12:3 13:14 14:14
 16:7 28:20 41:4 42:20 46:17
 48:8,15,23 49:14 50:9,15 58:7
 69:11 77:21
moved 18:1,15 48:15 50:5
 86:17,18
movement 65:10
moving 13:12 37:10 58:20
 78:20 85:6
multilevel 68:10
mute 5:16
muted 4:20

N

NAACP 25:4
NACO 21:19

NACOLE 10:18 21:22 25:9
 71:15 79:8
named 45:6
names 17:2
narcotics 35:13
narrative 28:24 29:9 46:16
nation 10:3
national 21:19 22:9,10,17
 31:17 34:6,24 60:17 67:18,21
nature 42:16
needed 38:21 81:6
neglecting 83:15
neighborhood 31:19 36:18
 47:5 60:22 61:16 63:14 65:20
network 33:23 56:19
newly 83:13
news 4:1 37:9 43:12 77:8 81:8
nexus 35:20 36:8
nice 85:1
Nick 20:21 76:13
ninth 34:11,18 35:11
non-criminal 3:10
non-fatal 29:19 62:5,18,21
non-issue 57:20
none@none.com 2:20
note 2:8 5:15,19 7:17 16:9
 28:20 70:20
notes 37:13
noticed 66:21
notification 7:5
notify 7:1
November 72:20
NPO 59:22
NSO 65:21
number 3:12 24:8 38:7,14
 40:5 48:2 53:13,14,17,25

54:2,7,11 59:8 62:18 65:15
66:5,11 68:21 70:21 75:21,24
76:9,11 84:3 85:5

numbers 2:13 45:6 53:11
54:10 61:25 62:12,13 63:5
66:14 75:15,20 82:17

O

obligation 28:6

occurred 14:25 41:22 42:7

OCI 72:4 77:12

October 2:7 13:13 18:4,8,13
30:13 31:21 32:6 72:1,9,11,18
75:9 76:3

offender 64:2,10 69:14

offenders 63:25 64:5,7,10
67:10

offensive 84:16

offer 10:1 42:3 55:14

offering 42:15 55:13

office 3:8 24:6,7 33:6 56:16
64:13 83:5

officer 24:6,8,13,14 26:9,14
30:1 33:6 35:5 41:9 59:24

officer's 77:3

officers 9:1 26:8 31:24 32:2
33:4,8,25 34:3,7,9,16,21,25
36:14,19 38:5,17 39:8 41:17
58:15 63:14 64:14,15 76:22
81:5,7,21,25 85:10

officially 7:4

officials 21:8

offline 56:24

oftentimes 50:18

onboard 15:19

ongoing 22:16 25:10 38:10
83:22

online 6:24 7:1 59:16 60:10

open 22:23 33:3 37:4 58:16

opened 33:1

opening 27:19

operate 5:24

operating 69:12 72:4

operations 20:24 33:19

operator 39:17

opportunity 8:16 9:10 26:22
39:24 48:21 51:11 54:25
57:17 69:8 70:9 83:6

opposed 16:15

opposition 27:13

option 5:16

options 5:3

oral 4:13 74:5

order 8:5 11:15 15:24 18:9
24:4,5,18,21 25:6 29:4,5,6,12
59:11 78:2 79:6 83:16

ordinances 5:10

organization 22:17 23:20
24:25 27:1 65:21

organizations 25:5

outline 26:19

outlined 51:21

outlines 28:10

outreach 35:16 36:19 63:13

outstanding 13:6 22:18 58:8

oversee 80:5

oversight 21:20 22:8 27:23
46:24 80:10 83:1

overtake 40:2

owner 47:11 69:9

owners 68:2

P

packet 71:22 72:3

paired 35:6 39:13

pandemic 60:6

panel 5:21 15:11 71:18

panelists 2:16 5:16,20

paper 65:1

paramount 22:13

Park 61:7

parking 60:24

part 25:2 29:15 38:8 44:13
65:3 75:14

participants 4:15,19

participate 31:25

participated 86:6

participating 68:19

partner 70:7

partners 36:20

partnership 33:22,24 44:13

partnerships 68:13

pass 55:16 83:19

passed 17:22 19:17 53:21,24

past 22:3 23:21 28:3 31:15
66:16 71:18 80:3

Pastor 61:11

pastors 40:9

path 76:13

patrol 8:25 71:1,4

patrolling 35:13

pause 34:14

paying 66:3

peace 32:7,11

peaceful 30:24

Peddling 32:7

pending 55:19

Penson 8:6,8,11 9:18 10:5

people 3:24 4:1 9:13 10:13

11:21 20:18 24:3 25:14,25
26:1,3 27:11,12 30:20,23 39:1
41:14 43:15 44:1 49:4 53:20,
21,23 59:8 60:10 70:2,15
73:6,18 75:11,12,22 76:16,17
77:9 82:4,6 83:19 84:13,15,
17,19 85:2,3,4,11,15,19

perfect 48:1

period 53:15

permanently 53:16

permission 59:12

person 23:13 26:25 38:23
64:11 79:21 85:22

personal 22:20 70:18,20

personally 76:18

personnel 8:25 54:17 66:1
67:2

Petty 20:22 58:23 59:17,20
61:19,22

phone 2:12 60:1 79:23

phones 5:12

physical 53:23

Pinckney 61:7

place 22:7 23:19 31:22 43:19
46:4 51:2 59:22 65:4,13 66:4
68:22 69:6 71:19

places 38:19 63:18 65:3 70:4

platforms 3:2

play 44:20

plenty 75:3

PM 4:11 5:4 32:15 61:9,12
72:12,19,21 83:3 84:2

PO 30:1,9

point 6:5 11:25 12:3 13:15
15:24 18:9 25:8 28:22 29:6
55:18 57:5 83:6 84:11

points 80:8

police 2:6 3:4,7 4:10 8:18,25
20:4 21:17,23 26:8,9 31:20,24

36:18 38:21 41:9,11,17,22
43:11,19,22 47:3,4 54:9 55:19
63:14 68:3,6 71:17 73:3 74:1
75:7 76:22 80:10 81:12,18,25
82:11,14 84:9 85:9

policies 2:10,24,25 3:2 28:7,8

policing 75:2 81:21,22

policy 3:19 80:5,19 82:3 83:17

politely 84:16

politics 79:13

poorest 76:12

population 65:17 67:1,8

portion 61:21

position 8:2 66:5,12

positions 53:8,9,10 57:10,12

positive 31:2

post 6:14,16,17 11:3,11 13:19,
22 24:11

posted 5:11 13:18 14:4 83:9

posting 6:10

poverty 76:10

practice 34:6,24 35:3 78:7

practicing 60:2

pray 74:3,4

prayer 9:19,25 10:1 40:7

praying 40:11

precinct 20:22 30:7,10 31:23
34:12,18 35:8,11,24,25 37:22
38:9 40:4,7,18 45:3 47:20,24
58:21,24 61:4 62:7,10,16,17,
19 63:8,24 64:21,23 65:18,25
68:11 69:21

precincts 34:9,25 35:21
40:17,18 45:11 63:3 69:22

prefer 72:25

prejudicial 65:9

prepared 32:19

presence 73:3

present 12:12 13:5 15:2,21
71:18 83:6

presentation 38:5

presentations 3:18

presented 32:4 71:15

presenting 35:24

President 21:11 74:10

press 4:16 22:24 77:8 79:12

pressing 22:7

pretty 61:19 79:11

prevent 5:13

prevention 34:1 67:19,21

previous 62:3

preyed 67:6

preying 64:19

Price 81:19

pride 27:22

primarily 35:8

printing 72:2

prior 24:1

prize 61:20

proactive 64:9 69:4

probable 64:11,17

problem 14:15 38:20 55:3
78:5 86:11

Procedures 72:5

proceed 16:1

process 7:2,21 10:25 15:18
23:22 24:3,17,24 25:6,11,12
27:22,23 37:1 45:9 49:17
57:18

profession 85:15

professional 5:8 20:20 38:22

program 28:4 34:20 47:14
54:19 60:8 63:22 65:8,11

67:18,22 68:1,8,15,19 69:21
76:22,25 81:5

programs 60:13 69:15 70:8

progress 36:3

project 80:11

promotion 56:15

prompt 2:17

prompted 2:15

prone 81:14

proof 35:7,20

propensity 36:10

proper 23:19 28:13

properly 27:21 48:22 49:19
50:5 76:14 86:18

property 29:22 63:22 66:6,8

prosecution 70:1

prosecutor's 33:6 64:13

protect 63:16 64:24 65:13

protected 9:3

protest 30:7,17,18,20 33:1,12

protest-related 30:15

protesting 30:23

protests 30:15,17,24 33:1

protocol 49:17

proud 58:2

provide 3:22 24:20 75:16,23,
24

provided 53:2,3 65:20

providing 35:16

public 4:6,7,12,18 5:4,5 11:13,
15,21 23:18 27:15 28:15,18
32:8,14 37:5 47:16 48:16
50:9,15,20 51:8,9 64:19 70:22
76:10 77:10 79:13,25 84:24
85:25

publicly 23:17

pulled 46:6

put 7:23 38:17 44:2 51:2 56:19

putting 35:2

Q

Q&a 11:3

quarantined 31:4

question 11:3,5 39:21 56:10
57:8,24

questions 11:10 39:25 49:10
56:7 70:10 83:10

quickly 54:21 55:1

quorum 13:11

R

race 53:6

Racing 45:23

racism 76:20 81:22 82:3

raise 4:15 5:1 26:6 31:10 68:8

raised 10:24 31:11,13 81:19

raising 65:6

rally 32:9

rappers 42:14

rate 62:21 65:16

rates 66:19

reach 43:12 51:14 69:23

reached 9:23 23:1 27:4 42:12

ready 38:24

real 37:21

reality 57:16

realize 67:1 76:19

rear-ended 30:4

reason 14:3 83:2

receive 3:23 4:1 32:1 70:1
72:14

received 14:10 71:14,22 72:4,
9

receivership 75:17

recently 25:23 28:6 69:18 77:4

recess 79:5

recognition 27:25 71:13
76:14,17 77:4 80:3,11,18 82:2

recognize 8:14

recommendations 72:7,8

record 69:10

recording 19:22 55:4

recovered 30:13

recovering 30:5,8,11

recruiting 53:11 54:21 55:7
56:15 72:10

Recruitment 20:4

recruits 31:6

reduce 11:17

reducing 68:21

reduction 62:11 66:14

redundancy 11:1

refer 71:9

reference 7:21 9:15 22:8 23:1
25:21 41:2 47:21

references 27:4

refrain 5:8

Refuse 30:19

regard 30:17 40:17

regenerates 77:2

regular 36:11 45:19

rejecting 16:2

relates 29:15 30:14 32:16
64:7,9 66:19

relation 81:16

relations 20:1 73:4

relationship 77:3

relevant 5:10
remain 5:8 33:3
remainder 24:11
remaining 77:20 78:17,18
remember 4:24
reminded 28:6
reminder 2:22,23 5:14
reminders 2:8 4:18
removal 79:7
remove 24:5
removed 24:6,15
repeat 50:6,12
repeating 38:16
reply 84:19
report 21:15 26:13 46:18
 52:22 53:2 66:7 71:13,14,23,
 25 72:2
reported 65:19
reporter 19:23 22:24,25 23:7
reporting 11:25 37:8
reports 3:18 71:21
representative 79:8 84:10
representatives 21:8
representing 20:4
request 4:12,14 44:19
requires 3:2 24:12
rescheduled 53:22,25
rescind 24:10
rescinding 24:12
research 28:10
Reset 78:20
residences 68:11
residency 54:6
residents 54:7 82:25
resign 27:12,13 79:18

resignation 28:25 29:9
resolve 27:7
resources 3:15 46:6,8 65:25
 71:13
respect 28:19 53:5 57:18 59:4
 70:20 79:24 84:12,13
respectful 5:8
respectfully 16:25 45:17 47:1
respond 25:19 49:10,11
responded 22:25 23:9
responding 22:16 47:25
response 11:12 34:7,9 36:5
responsibilities 65:24 80:9
responsibility 25:17
responsible 35:12 64:12
 67:12 80:5
rest 73:12 84:12
restore 77:20
restricted 54:15 58:15
result 2:25 4:23 24:15 31:4
resulted 33:8,9
retired 71:17
reveals 77:8
Reverend 13:3 74:18
review 50:3 71:23 72:5 80:18
reviews 77:12
Revitalization 36:21
reward 42:15
rid 82:6
ride 32:13
riding 32:11
rights 26:4
ripping 45:20
rise 68:10
risk 35:15

Robberies 29:20
robbery 66:17,20
Robert 19:25
Robert's 24:4,5,18,20 25:6
 83:15
role 26:18 38:22 44:20
roll 7:20 15:3,22 16:17,19,23
 17:1 18:22 35:21 36:1 42:21
 51:22
Romney's 30:1
room 60:1 79:22
Rosalia 20:8
ruled 28:2,16,18
Rules 24:4,5,18,20 25:6 83:16
run 56:22 67:3
running 83:5
runs 35:19
rushed 46:22

S

safe 63:9 65:2
safer 65:11
safest 62:16
safety 32:9,14 70:22,23 76:10
sake 61:25 63:19 67:14
Sara 55:7
Saturday 32:6,10 54:22 55:10
 61:5 72:11
Savior 9:5
say-- 6:4
schedule 10:19 72:21
scheduled 53:20,23
Scotty 82:16,25
Scrappy 38:13
screen 5:1 6:17 13:22

scroll 14:23
second-lowest 65:16
seconded 83:24
secretary 6:9 15:3,15
seek 84:8
self-mute 5:16
Senate 48:20
Senator 71:16
send 5:22 40:25 64:14
sending 64:18
Seneca 61:8
Senior 20:7
sense 26:11
separate 38:20
separated 74:22
separately 18:10,20
separations 54:18
September 17:25 18:12 21:16
 30:12 53:3,12,19 54:2,10,12
Sergeant 28:16 30:6 54:21
 55:6,7 56:23 60:19 61:2,3
Sergeants 21:1,12
seriousness 45:7
served 21:20 22:3 24:8 25:22
 26:17
service 34:3,13 40:4 43:16
 44:1 65:20 67:4
service-related 67:3
services 5:10 35:9,17,18
 65:19 70:1 75:23
serving 22:2 41:17
session 8:2
set 28:7 80:4
setting 9:15 56:4
Seven's 15:5
seventh 20:22 30:6 35:23

58:21,24 61:4 62:7,10,16
 63:23 64:21 65:18,25 68:11
 69:20
sex 53:6
Sexual 29:20
Sgt 59:23
share 6:17 9:14 25:16 33:19
 36:2 37:12 47:9 55:8 59:15
 62:2,9,12 65:1 68:16 70:13,16
 71:24 72:8,13 73:11,12
shared 13:22 27:6
sharing 47:4 60:2 70:18
sheet 68:18
Shelby 80:10,17 83:21
shelter 31:12
shields 9:2
shift 71:2
shifts 67:4 74:22
Shirley 9:21 12:9
shirt 15:6
shooting 62:22
shootings 29:19 62:5,18
Shopping 47:11
short 61:13
show 6:16 47:15 62:15
shows 53:22,25
sick 54:15
side 64:4 78:5
sign 4:2,9
signed 60:1 75:11
significant 68:20
significantly 62:19 63:2 65:18
signup 68:18
silence 5:12 79:5
silencing 83:22
similar 2:20 84:14

sir 6:6,7,13,18 8:10 12:20,24
 13:5,15,16 16:18,19,20,22
 18:12,21 20:12 21:10 29:14
 37:16,17 40:3 43:5,6 45:5,7,
 17 46:1,25 47:7 48:14 49:16,
 21,24 50:13 51:5 52:19 53:1
 54:20 55:5 56:6 57:7,18,22
 58:7,19 59:1,13,19 70:13
 71:5,8 73:9 76:6 78:10,14,22
 80:23 82:19 86:9,11
sit 10:24
sits 44:14
sitting 7:3 20:17 22:2,9 27:16
situation 69:17 70:16 85:8
 86:15
six- 41:9
six-year-old 41:15
sixth 45:3
skillsets 39:12
slight 15:9
slightly 62:25
Sloan 20:7
small 30:18 76:24
Smartsheet 4:9,14,25
smile 15:5
smiling 20:14
Smith 80:10,14,16,17 83:21
social 38:14,18 60:3 69:15
Socialists 78:25
Society 31:14
soft 35:9
softball 31:22 61:17
solve 41:18
solved 44:3
solves 82:4
sons 65:5,14 70:18
SOP 72:7

sort 45:21
sounds 5:13 56:23
space 60:2
spaces 64:24
speak 4:12 5:6 6:14 9:8 26:22
 32:18 44:5 47:8 58:23 60:19
 61:2 70:10 83:12
speaker 5:6,7 50:10 78:21
 80:22
speakers 5:21 74:8,9 78:18
 79:24 80:13 82:15
specialist 35:6 36:6,12 39:11,
 15
specially 21:13
specific 16:25 29:16 49:10
specifically 33:21 53:6 64:16
speech 4:22 29:7
speeding 38:7 45:20
spend 35:1 67:17
spent 79:10
spiking 75:15
spoke 26:25 60:15
spoken 18:22
sponsored 25:24
sports 79:8
spots 75:3
spread 55:23
square 75:16
staff 5:7 6:15,25 13:21 14:23
 19:19,24 20:9 22:19 23:8
 25:14 43:4 58:4,5 59:22 71:21
 86:6
staffing 53:5,8
stand 9:24 67:2 86:21
standard 34:24 49:7 51:15,20
 72:4
standards 20:21

star 4:16 5:2
stare 79:22
start 4:20 8:11 15:3 61:12 68:8
 83:14
started 26:5 36:15 57:1 58:22
starting 34:11 68:10
starts 26:12
stat 67:16
state 10:17 25:24 48:19 65:2
 74:1
stated 20:16 23:4 77:13 83:17
statement 27:19
States 67:20,23 81:8
status 33:12
stay 60:11
steered 28:11
Stein 20:24 32:19 33:16,18
 36:24,25 38:1,2,3,4 39:3,5,19
 41:2 43:1,7 44:8,11 45:1,5,16
 46:20 66:24
step 7:3
stepped 59:25
Stewart 20:3
stop 30:5 76:25 81:18
stops 69:5
strategies 63:10
strategy 64:4
street 9:1 68:5
streets 47:16 65:11 71:1
stressful 81:13
string 46:19
stuck 75:21
students 55:16,22
stuff 27:17 45:21
submit 83:10
submitted 33:5

subscribe 3:25
subset 34:3
success 22:20 62:9 63:12
successor 24:10,14
successor's 24:9
suddenly 77:11
suggestion 47:7,16
suggestions 38:11
suicide 34:1
summary 53:2 71:12
Sunday 32:11
super 43:2
supers 46:23
Supervising 20:6,7
support 18:2 52:18 57:1 65:7
 74:15,16,19
supported 49:20 86:19
supportive 37:11
Surely 9:24
surprised 38:8
surrounding 55:22
survive 76:25 81:18
survivors 69:20,23,24
suspect 30:11
suspensions 54:17
sustained 33:3,9
sworn 26:8,9,13 53:6,8,11
 54:3,8,10,12,17
system 49:9 51:13
systemic 81:22 82:3

T

table 11:4
takes 7:2
taking 25:19 66:4 68:22 69:6

talk 24:4 32:19 33:22 35:1
 41:1 45:10
talked 11:19 22:24 26:8 57:24
talking 24:17 58:3
tape 50:4
task 11:18 25:22
tasked 64:16
Taski 21:5
tasks 55:17
taxing 81:14
teachers 85:10
team 34:5 35:4 58:8,15 59:15
 61:18 64:15 65:22 66:22
teams 32:2
technical 78:5
technology 19:21 65:12 80:3,
 11
teenagers 76:23
telephone 4:17
telling 59:20
temporarily 53:16
Teresa 19:25
term 23:24 24:11,13 79:17
terms 5:9 7:24 10:1 11:1
 22:14,20 24:2,23 25:11 37:9
 41:16 42:16 85:17
tested 9:16 31:2
testified 28:17
testing 53:19
tests 53:23
Texas 81:19
text 86:1
texted 44:18 72:24
thanking 8:16
that's 53:14 57:4
theft 29:24 67:19,21 68:23,24

therapy 30:9
there've 6:24
thing 25:9 26:14 27:24 38:15
 60:14 85:9
things 7:25 43:10 46:12 60:5,
 14,18 66:3 67:13,16 81:17
 83:13,19 84:25 85:11,14
thinking 40:21 85:2
thought 44:18 76:13
three-headed 28:9
three-hour 11:18 49:2
throw 79:6
Thursday 2:7 9:11 72:8,18,20
Tiffany 20:3
tight 11:8
time 5:12,18,22,24 10:9 11:4
 12:4 15:9,12 18:7 21:10 22:2
 25:19 29:4,12 33:3 40:2 42:19
 46:13,21 48:18 49:3 50:18
 54:24 55:13 56:14 57:14 58:1
 61:25 63:19 67:14,17 68:25
 74:23 75:25 77:20 78:8,14,17,
 18 79:1,25 80:20 81:23
timeframe 12:3
times 48:17 58:12 67:9
today 19:22,23,25 20:9 22:24
 48:21
Today's 2:7 77:8
told 47:3 56:15
tolerate 64:21
tomorrow 31:5,6,21 40:7
 82:24 83:3 84:2
tool 70:4 76:19
tools 36:14 39:9
top 57:9
topic 64:25
total 53:13,16 54:2,4,8,9,11,
 18,19 66:10,12

touch 67:7
touched 76:18
track 34:16,23
traffic 30:2,3,5
trail 24:19
train 33:24 34:24 36:15 76:23
trained 34:4,7,10,16,21 35:5
 38:6 39:8
trainer 34:20
trainers 34:18
training 25:10 34:3,5,6,17
 35:3 36:22 38:23
transfer 5:22
transferred 15:10 65:22,24
tree 60:21
tremendous 62:14
tremendously 69:19
trend 62:7
trends 66:15,21
triangle 64:5
Trisha 20:24 32:18 33:18 38:1
trophy 32:1,4
true 2:19
trump 60:20
trust 78:25
truth 62:12
truthful 78:8
Tuesday 3:24 73:4 81:16
tune 62:5
Turkey 30:23
turnout 55:11
TV 56:19
type 10:19 23:10 25:12 26:16
 37:11 73:23
types 27:17 58:14

U

U- 25:3

un-muted 54:24 84:5

unacceptable 15:14

unbelievable 26:5,16

under- 65:18

understand 14:1 42:2 57:23
74:16 75:2

understanding 43:17

Underwood 20:2

unfair 65:8

unfairly 76:15

unfinished 48:8

unfit 28:25

unfortunate 23:15

unfounded 33:10

uniform 71:4

United 81:8

units 35:12

University 65:2

unjust 65:9

unjustly 76:15

unmute 5:17,23

unnecessary 85:13

unprotected 4:22

unveiling 31:8

update 14:25 30:1 32:25 36:3
45:19

updates 3:18 45:19

upset 42:13

uptick 75:19

urgency 8:1

utilize 64:22

utilized 68:17

Utilizing 64:24

V

vacancy 82:23

vacant 53:9,10

vacation 59:10

valid 83:23

variety 51:13

vehicle 29:24 39:10 67:19,21
68:3,22 69:10,12

vehicles 31:9 63:17 68:1,25

verbalize 46:15

version 60:20

versus 32:2

vice-chair 13:7,8,24 14:1,13,
18 15:24 16:1,5,11 17:21
18:1,15 19:16 44:6,17 52:8
58:13

vicious 77:1

victim 64:2 69:1

victimized 67:9

victims 63:3 64:5 65:15

video 3:19 4:21,22 8:12 15:4

videos 5:24

view 83:7

vigil 40:7

violating 5:9

violence 31:8,11 62:23 69:16,
17,20 81:11

violent 29:17 63:1,4 65:14,16
82:4

virtual 2:8 4:7 22:18

visible 2:16

visit 3:13,16 63:10

vocal 25:8

voluntarily 68:2

voluntary 67:21 68:5

vote 16:19,20,22,23 24:11
51:17,19 83:18

voted 27:25 28:3,17

votes 17:2

voting 26:4

W

wait 47:24 64:12,14

waiting 53:18

walk 61:13

wanted 37:22 38:15 39:21
40:3,5,9,13 47:6 54:25 70:17
73:1,5 75:6 79:3 82:1

wanting 50:25

warn 29:4

warning 29:11

Warren 41:22,23 42:6,12
43:19,20 47:10

wash 83:20

watch 10:14 63:22 67:18,22

wave 56:3

Wayne 25:23 33:6,23

wear 9:2

wearing 15:5

website 3:13,16 4:9,16

Wednesday 30:22

week 10:23 26:23 30:12,16,17
38:23 71:11,22 72:4,16 79:4,
18,19 86:1

weekend 31:18 46:4 60:17

weekly 3:20 6:3 10:17,23
71:12 72:3 77:13

weeks 24:22 62:3 71:19 75:20

weigh 28:8

welcomed 37:12

welfare 26:21 27:1
wellness 65:22 66:23
Westside 45:3,15,23,25
White 2:5 6:1,13,15 13:10,11,
20,21 14:17,21 15:7 16:24
17:4,22 19:17,20 20:10,15
21:4,7,10 37:1,16 44:18
46:12,14 50:1,7,8 52:13,14,
20,21 70:14 71:7,8 72:17,24
73:15
who'll 69:10
William 12:18 81:9
Willie 15:2 29:10 44:14 84:11
winner 31:25 32:4
witnessed 86:8
women 43:11 71:1,3 74:15
wondering 38:11
Woodward 30:25
word 55:24
work 27:7 36:20 43:2 47:12
48:1 49:6 60:8 63:10 69:16
74:21 81:7,13
worker 38:14 69:16
workers 38:19
working 42:5 43:23 46:14
62:15 74:24 81:7
works 71:1
workshops 22:22
worthy 31:10
would've 41:8
wrap 35:15
writing 11:12 46:15
written 23:7 53:20
wrong 28:12

Y

year 21:16 22:23 23:23,24

34:8,14,15 35:11 36:4 53:12
62:9,14,20 77:10 79:16
year's 66:13
year-old 41:10
yearly 31:15
years 8:20,22 22:3 23:15 24:9,
14 25:1 31:16 77:6 79:10
yesterday 31:7
yield 80:19
young 20:25 21:11 41:7 43:13
74:9,13,14
youth 76:23
YWCA 31:12

Z

Zion 61:14
zoom 2:9,13,15,17 3:1 5:1
6:24 40:11 48:4 60:8,11 73:7,
9
zoom's 2:24 5:9
zoom.us. 2:9